
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

October 28, 2019 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Ron Higey; Vestavia Hills Chaplain  

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Announcement Of Vacancy On Vestavia Hills Parks And Recreation Board And 

Deadline For Application – Councilor Paul Head 

b. Announcement Of Vacancy On Vestavia Hills Library Board And Deadline For 

Application – Mayor Ashley Curry 

6. Proclamation – World Polio Day – October 24, 2019 

7. Proclamation – National Hospice and Palliative Care Month – November 2019 

8. Proclamation – Small Business November – November 2019 

9. City Manager’s Report 

10. Councilors’ Reports 

11. Approval Of Minutes – October 14, 2019 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

12. Ordinance Number 2875 – Rezoning – 2961 Green Valley Road; Rezone From Vestavia 

Hills R-5 (Multi-Family) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Magnum 

Properties, Owner(s)   (public hearing) (postponed from October 14, 2019 by request of 

petitioner) 

13. Resolution Number 5191 – A Resolution Renaming A City Street From Pine Drive To 

Pine Tree Drive   (public hearing) 

New Business 

14. Resolution Number 5195 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Sign An 

Easement Agreement For Electrical Services To The New Pools At Wald Park 

15. Resolution Number 5199 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Street Resurfacing For 

The City Of Vestavia Hills 

  



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Resolution Number 5194 – Vacation – Lot Line/Utility Easements Located On Lots 1, 

2, 3 And 4, Block 2, Meadowlawn Estates; 1st Addition; Tiebo, LLC, Owners  (public 

hearing) 

17. Resolution Number 5200 – A Resolution To Reinstate Incentives For Serra Automotive 

Group And Anthony And Mary Margaret Serra For The Purpose Of Construction Of 

Land And Facility Improvements And Conveyance Of Property To Be Used For Public 

Purposes Within The Massey Road Project   (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2880 - An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-4 Of The Vestavia Hills 

Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights” To 

Rename The Park As “Cahaba Heights Park”  (public hearing) 

19. Resolution Number 5196 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. 

Joseph Retreat; Vincent And Julie Poppalardo, Owners  (public hearing)  

20. Ordinance Number 2881 – Annexation – Overnight – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. 

Joseph Retreat; Vincent And Julie Poppalardo, Owners    (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 5197 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, 

Gresham Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2882 – Annexation – Overnight – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, 

Gresham Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public hearing) 

23. Resolution Number 5198 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit Parekh 

And Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2883 – Annexation – Overnight – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit 

Parekh And Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2884 – An Ordinance Granting A Non-Exclusive Right-Of-Way Use 

Agreement To Level 3 Communications, LLC, For The Purpose Of Constructing And 

Maintaining A Fiber-Optic Transmission Line Within Certain Public Rights-Of-Way 

Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama     (public hearing) 

26. Citizens Comments 

27. Motion for Adjournment 

 



WHEREAS, Rotary is a global network of 1.2 million neighbors, friends, leaders, and problem-
solvers who unite and take action to create lasting change in communities across 
the globe; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Rotary motto, Service Above Self, inspires members to provide humanitarian 

service, follow high ethical standards, and promote goodwill and peace in the 
world; and   

 
WHEREAS, Rotary in 1985 launched PolioPlus and in 1988 helped establish the Global Polio 

Eradication Initiative to immunize the children of the world against polio; and  
 

WHEREAS,   polio cases have dropped by 99.9% since 1988 and the world stands on the 
threshold of eradicating the disease; and 

 
WHEREAS, Rotary’s efforts are providing much-needed operational support, medical staff, 

laboratory equipment, and educational materials for health workers and parents; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, there are over 5,950 Rotary members in more than 121 clubs throughout Alabama 

that sponsor service projects to address such critical issues as poverty, disease, 
hunger, illiteracy, and the environment in their local communities and abroad.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim October 24, 
2019 as  

 
     WORLD POLIO DAY 

 
and encourage all citizens to join me and Rotary International in the fight for a 
polio-free world. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 23rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



WHEREAS, as Medicare’s first proven coordinated care model, hospice is a program that 
works offering person-centered, compassionate care, ensuring people dignity, 
choice, and quality of life; and 

 
WHEREAS, hospice involves an interdisciplinary, team-oriented approach to treatment, 

including expert medical care, quality symptom control, and comprehensive pain 
management as a foundation of care; and   

 
WHEREAS, hospice also attends to the patient’s emotional, spiritual and family needs, and 

provides family services like respite care and bereavement counseling; and  
 

WHEREAS, hospice is one of the few sectors that demonstrates how health care can – and 
should - work at its best for its patients; and 

 
WHEREAS,  research indicates that timely access to hospice and palliative care can decrease 

hospitalizations and Emergency Room visits and increase quality of life for 
patients and family caregivers; and 

 
WHEREAS,  every year more than 1.5 million Americans living with life-limiting illness, and 

their families, received care from the nation’s hospice programs in communities 
throughout the United States; and  

 
WHEREAS, hospice and palliative care organizations are advocates and educators about 

advance care planning that help individuals make decisions about the care they 
want.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim November 
2019 as  

 
     NATIONAL HOSPICE & PALLIATIVE CARE MONTH 
 
and encourage all residents to increase their understanding and awareness of care 
at the end of life and to observe this month with appropriate activities and 
programs. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 23rd day of October 2019. 

 
 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



WHEREAS, the government of Vestavia Hills, Alabama celebrates our local small businesses 
and the contributions they make to our local economy and community; and 

 
WHEREAS, according to the United States Small Business Administration there are currently 

30.2 million small businesses in the United States and they represent 99.7% of all 
businesses with employees in the United States and are responsible for 66% of the 
net new jobs created from 2000 to 2017; and   

 
WHEREAS, small businesses employ 47.5% of the employees in the private sector in the 

United States; and  
 
WHEREAS, 96% of consumers who are aware of Small Business Saturday said the day 

encourages them to Shop Small all year long; and 
 
WHEREAS,  in 2018, consumers spent a record high of an estimated $17.8 billion at 

independent retailers and restaurants on Small Business Saturday; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the most reported reason for consumers aware of the day to shop and dine at small 

independently-owned businesses was to support their community; and  
 
WHEREAS, advocacy groups, as well as public and private organizations, in Alabama have 

endorsed the Saturday before Thanksgiving as Small Business Saturday. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim the month of 
November 2019 as  

 
     SMALL BUSINESS NOVEMBER 

 
and urge the residents of Vestavia Hills to Shop, Dine, Play in Vestavia Hills and 
to support small businesses and merchants this month and throughout the year. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have   
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 28th day of October 2019. 

 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

OCTOBER 14, 2019 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 

Butch Williams, Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 Mr. Pierce recognized Karen Odle, President of the Chamber of Commerce Board who
was in attendance.

 Mayor announced the postponement of Ordinance Number 2875 by request of the
petitioner which was rescheduled to be heard October 28, 2019 at 6 PM.

 Mayor announced an upcoming vacancy on the Library Board.  He announced that the
City Council will begin to accept applications for this vacancy beginning tomorrow
morning.  Deadline for application will be Monday, November 4, 2019 at 5 PM.  He
encouraged all interested applicants to apply.

 Mr. Head announced an upcoming vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation
Board.  He stated that the City Council will begin to accept applications for this vacancy
beginning tomorrow morning.  Deadline for application will be Monday, November 4,
2019 at 5 PM.  He encouraged all interested applicants to apply.



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating October 21, 2019 as “Magic Moments 
Day.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Sandy Naramore, 
Executive Director.  Mrs. Naramore stated that they are celebrating their 30th year and invited 
everyone to visit the website.  She stated there are many major local businesses along with two 
local schools, Liberty Park and Pizitz. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that WWE used to be a popular supporter of Magic Moments and that 
was inspirational. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that Moody’s Investment Services reaffirmed the City’s AAA rating 
with many compliments in the issue. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the first small cell application was received by the City for 
installation of a new pole at the southern end of Montgomery Highway.  He stated that the 
staff is aware of the “shot clock” and will be brought to Council when all information has 
been obtained. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that she challenges the City to bring more notice to recycling.  She 
explained that the City can do more recycling with less contamination if the residents are 
informed on how to recycle and reduce contamination.  She stated that one way residents 
can reduce contamination is to remember that the City’s recycler is a single-stream 
recycler, meaning recyclable materials must not be grouped into separate plastic bags.  
She stated that anything in a plastic trash bag goes to the landfill and counts as 
contamination. Contaminated recyclables (garbage) costs the City $115 per ton to process.  
She has a accepted a challenge from other local city councilors to see which city can 
reduce its contamination percentage the most. The winning city will choose a charity to 
which the other cities’ officials will contribute.  She encouraged residents to be on the 
lookout for more City information on how to be good recyclers.   

 Mrs. Cook gave a “shout out” to one of the Republic garbage collection employees who 
works the Liberty Park community. Alonso Williams has a reputation for providing great 
service and is friendly to everyone, but he was recently promoted to the commercial 
division and will no longer service the Liberty Park area.  She congratulated him on his 
promotion and thanked him for his excellent service to the community. 

 Mrs. Cook announced the inaugural Vestavia Hills Witches Ride to be held in Liberty 
Park on Sunday, October 20, 2019.  Cost to enter is $25 with proceeds going to the VHHS 
Rise Project which also benefits the UAB O’Neal Comprehensive Cancer Center.  Details 
are on her campaign page on Facebook. 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 3 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that he will be attending the Chamber Board meeting Thursday morning 
at 7:45 AM. 

 Mr. Pierce welcome Board Member, James Robinson, who is representing the Chamber 
Board. 

 The Mayor stated that on November 7, 2019 is the regular salute to veterans which is held 
at the Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church.  He stated that this year the keynote 
speaker will be a professional photographer who began chronicling WWII veterans.  One 
of those featured veterans is Mr. Carl Cooper, a Vestavia resident and a WWII Korea and 
Vietnam veteran.   Common theme from these veterans is, “I was just doing my duty” 
even though many are truly heroes.  The Mayor invited everyone to attend beginning at 
1:30 PM. 

 Mr. Weaver announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet Wednesday 
at 6 PM in Council Chambers, rescheduled from October 10. 

 Mr. Head stated that the Parks and Recreation Board will meet in work session on Friday, 
October 18, 2019 at 11:30 work session in the Executive Conference Room. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Sawaya presented the financial reports for month ending August 2019.  He read and 
explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  September 23, 2019 
(Regular Meeting). 
 
 Mr. Pierce amended the minutes to reflect that Mr. Weaver welcomed Chamber guests as 
he was absent. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the September 23, 2019 

(Regular Meeting); and approve them as amended was by was by Mrs. Cook 
seconded by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mr. Pierce – abstain  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2872 
 

Ordinance Number 2872 – An Ordinance For Conditional Use Approval For New Cingular 
Wireless PCS, LLC For Erection Of A 125’ Stealth Cellular Tower To 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 4 
 

Replace A Light Pole At The Soccer Fields Of The Sicard Hollow Athletic 
Complex; Property is Zoned Institutional And Is Owned By The City Of 
Vestavia Hills   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2872 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission met and considered this 
request and recommended approval following recordation of the access easement.  According to 
the information provided in the agenda packet, Mr. Boone has opined that the recorded Lease 
Agreement was enough to secure said easement. 
 
 Andy Rotenstreich was present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that there was information provided by the applicant stating, “This 
existing flagpole does not have adequate space for AT&T to install their antennas and previous proposed 
extensions of this tower resulted in a badly failing structural analysis.” She asked if this is something 
about which the City should be concerned. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained. 
 
 She asked if the structure needed to be inspected since the information seems to indicate 
that the existing pole might fail. 
 
 Mr. Rotenstreich responded that the statement was poorly worded and that the company 
did not feel the existing structure was in danger of failure.  He clarified that the study included in 
the packet was for the proposed AT&T equipment which needed additional coverage in the area.  
If the new equipment were to be added to the existing pole, the structure would fail.  However, 
as it stands today, that existing structure is fine.  This new pole will be taller than the existing 
light pole but the lights will be replaced. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2873 
 

Ordinance Number 2873 – Rezoning – 2647 Gresham Drive; Acreage Adjacent To The 
Former Gresham School, Now Vestavia Hills Dolly Ridge Elementary; 
Rezone From Jefferson County E-1 (Estate Residential) To Vestavia Hills 
Institutional (Institutional); City Of Vestavia Hills Board Of Education, 
Owner    (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 5 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2873 was by was by Mr. Weaver seconded 

by Mrs. Cook  
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that the Commission considered this request and recommended 
institutional zoning conditioned upon the ownership of the Board.  If the Board were to sell, the 
property would revert to compatible zoning. 
 
 The Mayor stated that he understands the Board plans to utilize this property as a parking 
lot. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2874 
 

Ordinance Number 2874 – Rezoning Amendment – Lot 1A, Resurvey Of Lots 1 & 3; 
Amending Ordinance Number 2110 Conditions To Allow Construction Of A 
Two-Story Commercial Building And Exclude Requirement For Shared 
Parking With Lot 3A; Clint Gentry, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2873 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook  
 
 Mr. Weaver stated this request was considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
in order to amend Ordinance 2110 which was applicable to this property as well as the adjacent 
lot.  The original rezoning called for a cross-parking agreement, which was never completed, and 
limited the structure to 1 ½ stories.  The plans are to build a two-story structure with the bottom 
floor to be used as a pharmacy.  This request was recommended for approval to allow a two-story 
building and remove the condition for a cross-parking agreement. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the four-way stop sign request in the original rezoning agreement. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that Engineering has not received a request for a four-way stop. 
 
 Michael Williams, representing the owner, stated that, when this was previously approved, 
the dentist office that intended to lease the space required the four-way stop, but that VHPD had 
denied the request because it was too close to the traffic light. 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5190 
 

Resolution Number 5190 – A Resolution To Approve A Plan For Street Resurfacing 
Pursuant To The Requirements Of The Rebuild Alabama Act 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5190 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this plan approval is required by the State of Alabama to 
comply with the Rebuild Alabama Act.  He stated that the paving schedule will be posted on the 
City’s website following approval by the City Council. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5192 
 

Resolution Number 5192 – A Resolution Re-Appointing A Member To The Design Review 
Committee 

 
 The Mayor stated that he nominated the reappointment of Jeff Slaton who is currently 
serving an unexpired term of a previous member. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5192 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 7 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5193 

 
Resolution Number 5193 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For American 

Multi Cinema Inc., D/B/A AMC Dine-In Vestavia Hills 10 for a 160 – Special 
Retail license; Kevin Michael Conner, Adam Maximillian Aron and John 
David McDonald, executives   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5193 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 Jeremiah Fountain, General Manager, was present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees to prevent service to underage minors. 
 
 Mr. Fountain stated that they have only one bar location in the establishment and everyone 
has an ID check prior to service.  He stated that employees are trained and bartenders are further 
trained through the responsible vendor program. 
 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked why the new application to serve alcohol. 
 

Mr. Fountain said a change in ownership necessitated the new application. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor announced that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented 
at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on October 28, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2875 – Rezoning – 2961 Green Valley Road; Rezone From Vestavia 
Hills R-5 (Multi-Family) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Magnum 
Properties, Owner(s)   (public hearing) (postponed from October 14, 2019 by request of 
petitioner) 

 Resolution Number 5191 – A Resolution Renaming A City Street From Pine Drive To 
Pine Tree Drive   (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
October 14, 2019 

Page 8 
 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 Karen Odle commended Ms. Leavings for her assistance in changing the name of Pine 
Tree Drive, which will be considered by the City Council at the next meeting, stating this has 
been a source of frustration for business owners on the street. 
 
 Mrs. Cook commended the Mayor for completing his Alabama League of Municipalities 
Certified Municipal Official training. She stated she knew just how much work it was to complete 
the 40 hours of training. 
 
 At 6:35 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2875 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
5 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

2961 Green Valley Road 
Magnum Properties, Owner(s) 

Part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 22, Township 18, Range 2 West, 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the NW corner of Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, thence East along the north line of said Section for 353.0 feet to the 
point of beginning, that point being also on the south right-of-way line of 
Green Valley Road; thence continue on last described course and along said 
right-of-way of 160.0 feet; thence 88 degrees 22 minutes right and in a 
southerly direction 329.59 feet to a point on the north line of Wallace 
Murphy’s property; thence 106 degrees 20 minutes 15 seconds right and 
parallel with the Birmingham Water Works Pipe Line right-of-way and 
along the north line of said Wallace Murphy’s property and in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 166.65 feet; thence 73 degrees 09 
minutes and 45 seconds right and in a northerly direction 287.27 feet to the 
point of beginning. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of October, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2875 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of October, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE: P-0819-38

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-5 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2961 Green Valley Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Magnum Properties, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 2961 Green Valley Rd. 
from R-5 to R-9. The applicant would demolish the four unit apartment building and 
construct 11 single family homes/lots. The lots would have a front setback of 8’, side 
setbacks of 5’ between dwellings, and a rear setback of 10’. All roads, sidewalks and 
improvements will be private and maintained by a homeowner’s association. The 
proposed site plan, renderings, and covenants are attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The plan states this property is for 
low density residential, however, it borders a medium residential single family 
product on both sides and would provide less density than an entitled multi-family 
development.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 



2

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-5 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located At 2961 Green Valley Rd.. Second was by Mr. 
Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

















































































































Resolution Number 5191 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5191 

A RESOLUTION RENAMING A STREET 

WHEREAS, in May 2002, following a referendum vote, the Cahaba Heights Fire District 

was annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, the Topfield Subdivision was recorded in the Office of the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County with a street name of “Pine Drive” on May 11, 1955;  and

WHEREAS, the street recorded as Pine Drive also been referred to as “Pine Tree Drive;” 

and 

WHEREAS, a search of Jefferson County’s records shows no record of an official street 

name change to “Pine Tree Drive;” and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Public Works Department, following annexation, erected a street 

sign located at the entrance says “Pine Drive;” and 

WHEREAS, E-9-1-1 requires that signage and street names coincide to allow 

enhancement of emergency services throughout the City; and 

WHEREAS, a polling of the residents of that street reportedly either use or are willing to 

use the street name “Pine Tree Drive” and prefer that the name of the street remain as such; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel is in the best interest of the public to 

rename and clarify that the street name is “Pine Tree Drive” and allow the City adopted signage 

reflecting the correct name of the street and notify all government agencies of the same. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The street known as “Pine Drive” and/or “Pine Tree Drive” is hereby named as “Pine Tree

Drive.”

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to notify all agencies of said name of street and

erect City adopted signage to reflect said name; and

3. This Resolution Number 5191 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of October, 2019.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Resolution Number 5191 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Exhibit Resolution No. 5191



Resolution Number 5195 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5195 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama

Power Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said

agreement (copy attached); and

2. Resolution Number 5195 shall become effective immediately upon adoption

and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of October, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5195



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5195



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5195



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5195



Resolution Number 5199 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5199 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR STREET RESURFACING AND 
REPAIR IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

WHEREAS, on September 12, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for street repair and resurfacing in the City of Vestavia Hills with four bids 

received; and 

WHEREAS, the Asst. City Engineer has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice 

Memorandum to the City Manager dated October 23, 2019 and recommended acceptance of the 

bid submitted by Dunn Construction Company.  A copy of said Interoffice Memorandum is 

marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5199 as if written 

fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the Asst. City Engineer and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Dunn Construction Company as detailed in attached Exhibit A and

recommended by the Asst. City Engineer, is hereby accepted; and

2. This Resolution Number 5199 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of October, 2019.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Ci
ty
of
Ve
st
av
ia
H
ill
s

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5199



Resolution Number 5194 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5194 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ASSENTING TO A 
DECLARATION OF VACATION 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, a Declaration signed by the owners of all the lands abutting the 

following described utility easement situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, vacating said utility easement, has been duly presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for assent and approval of said governing 

body; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said Declaration with map attached is marked as “Exhibit 

A”, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out 

fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the above-referenced utility easement is commonly referred to as “a 

utility easement” and is more particularly described as follows: 

Description of a 15 wide utility easement to be vacated , said easement 
situated in the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, and lying 
on Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 2, according to the survey of Meadowlawn 
Estates 1st Addition, as recorded in Map Book 47, Page 5, in the probate 
office of Jefferson County, Alabama, said easement being 7.5 foot wide on 
both sides of a centerline described as follows: Commence at the 
intersection of the Southerly right of way line of Knollwood Drive , with 
the Westerly right of way line of Asbury Road; thence run South 03 degrees 
21 minutes 10 seconds East along said westerly right of way line of Asbury 
Road for 148.75 feet to the point of beginning of said easement centerline; 
thence run North 89 degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds west for 156.29 feet to 
a point on the Westerly boundary of Lots 1 and 4, Block 2 of said 
Meadowlawn Estates 1st Addition, to the end of said easement centerline. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the vacation of the hereinabove 

described utility easement is assented to and approved and the same is hereby vacated 

pursuant to the provision of Section 23-4-20 of the Code of Alabama, 1975. 



Resolution Number 5194 
Page 2 

RESOLVED, DONE AND ORDERED, on this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council 
held on the 13th day of November, 2019, and that such Resolution is of record in the Minute 
Book of the City at page _________ thereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on this the __________ day of ___________________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5194



05000161.4 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 

_________________________________ 

___________________, 2019 
_________________________________ 

Re: Special Economic Development Agreement 
(Serra Automotive Group Project) 

 ___________________________________________________________________________ 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that (1) I am the duly elected, qualified and acting 
City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the "City"); (2) as Clerk of the City I have access 
to all original records of the City and I am duly authorized to make certified copies of its records 
on its behalf; (3) the attached pages constitute a complete, verbatim and compared copy of excerpts 
from the minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City duly held on November 13, 
2019, the original of which is on file and of record in the minute book of the City Council in my 
custody; (4) the resolution set forth in such excerpts is a complete, verbatim and compared copy of 
such resolution as introduced and adopted by the City Council on such date; and (5) said resolution 
is in full force and effect and has not been repealed, amended or changed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as Clerk of the City and have 
affixed the official seal of the City on the above date. 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

S E A L 



 

05000161.4 

 EXCERPTS FROM THE MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 

Special Economic Development Agreement 
(SerraAutomotive Group Project) 

 
The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular public session at the City Hall 

in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, at 6:00 p.m. on November 13, 2019.  The meeting was called 
to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called with the following results: 
 

Present: Ashley C. Curry, Mayor 
 Kimberly Cook 
 Paul J. Head 
 George Pierce 
 Rusty Weaver 
 

 Absent:   
 

*     *     * 
 

The Mayor stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 
 

*     *     * 
 

Thereupon, the following resolution was introduced in writing by the Mayor, and 
considered by the City Council: 

 
 



 

05000161.4 

RESOLUTION NO. 5200 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
A SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
BETWEEN  

SERRA AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND ANTHONY AND MARY MARGARET SERRA 
             

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA (the "Council"), AS GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA (the "City"), as follows: 

Section 1. The Council, upon evidence duly presented to and considered by it, has found 
and determined, and does hereby find, determine and declare as follows: 

(a) Pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Alabama, the City and Serra 
Automotive, Inc. and, Anthony and Mary Margaret Serra, (the "Beneficiary") have prepared that 
certain Special Economic Development Agreement to be dated the date of delivery (the "Special 
Economic Development Agreement"), as set forth hereinafter, for the purposes referenced therein. 

(b) Pursuant to Amendment No. 772 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as amended 
("Amendment No. 772"), it is necessary, desirable and in the public interest for the City to grant public 
funds in maximum principal amount of $232,372 pursuant to and for the purposes of the Special 
Economic Development Agreement. 

(c) The expenditure of public funds for the purposes specified in the Special Economic 
Development Agreement will serve a valid and sufficient public purpose, notwithstanding any 
incidental benefit accruing to the Beneficiary or any private entity or entities. 

(d) (1) On November 13, 2019, the City caused to be published in The Birmingham 
News, which newspaper has the largest circulation in the City, the notice required by Amendment No. 
772(c)(2), a true and correct copy of which notice is set forth as follows: 

  



 

05000161.4 

LEGAL NOTICE OF PROPOSED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTION 
AND  

RELATED PUBLIC EXPENDITURES BY THE CITY OF  
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama (the "City") will meet in public session at 6:00 p.m. on November 13, 2019 at City Hall in the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for the purpose of considering the transaction of business that may 
properly come before the Council, such business to include, but not be limited to, the authorization by 
the Council, pursuant to Amendment No. 772 to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as amended, of 
a resolution (the "Resolution") approving the execution and delivery of a Special Economic 
Development Agreement (the “City Agreement”) by the City and Serra Automotive, Inc. and, Anthony 
and Mary Margaret Serra, (the “Beneficiary”), to be dated the date of delivery, pursuant to which City 
Agreement the City shall make economic development grants to the Beneficiary, based solely upon a 
percentage of net sales tax proceeds and business license fee revenues received by the City from the 
operation of an automobile dealership on a site owned and improved by the Beneficiary in the  
maximum aggregate amount of $232,372, for the purpose of promoting the economic development of 
the City and in consideration of the establishment by the Beneficiary and the operation of commercial 
and related facilities in the City. 

The City seeks to achieve, by undertaking its obligations pursuant to the City Agreement and 
the Resolution, to promote the local economic and industrial development of the City, to increase 
employment in the City, and to increase the tax and revenue base of the City. 

The business entity to whom or for whose benefit the City propose to lend its credit or grant 
public funds or thing of value is the Beneficiary. 

All interested persons may examine and review the City Agreement and the Resolution, and 
make copies thereof at personal expense, at the offices of the City Manager during normal business 
hours, before and after the meeting referenced herein. 

Further information concerning the information in this notice can be obtained from the City 
Manager at the offices thereof during normal business hours.  

 

 

 



 

05000161.4 

(2) The information set forth in said notice is true and correct. 

(3) Publication of said notice is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

(e) (1) The assessed valuation of the taxable property in the City for the preceding 
fiscal year (ending September 30, 2018 and on the basis of which taxes became due and payable on 
October 1, 2018) was not less than $751,103,144. 

 
 (2) The total indebtedness of the City chargeable against the debt limitation for 

the City prescribed by Amendment No. 772(a)(4) (which indebtedness does include this obligation), is 
not more than fifty percent of said assessed valuation. 

 
Section 2. The Council does hereby approve, adopt, authorize, direct, ratify and confirm: 

(a) the agreements, covenants, and undertakings of the City set forth in the Special 
Economic Development Agreement, and 

(b) the terms and provisions of the Special Economic Development Agreement, in 
substantially the form and of substantially the content as set forth as follows, with such changes 
thereto (by addition or deletion) as the Mayor shall approve, which approval shall not extend or 
increase the obligations of the City thereunder and shall be conclusively evidenced by execution and 
delivery of the Special Economic Development Agreement as hereinafter provided: 



 

05000161.4 

              

SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

              

 
 

      
 

Dated Date of Delivery 
      

 

 

by 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
City Hall 

1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

between 

SERRA AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND ANTHONY AND MARY MARGARET SERRA 
 

 

 

 

              

This Special Economic Development Agreement was prepared by Heyward C. Hosch and Ann 
Watford Todd of Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C., 1901 Sixth Avenue North, 2400 
Regions/Harbert Plaza, Birmingham, Alabama 35203-2618. 
              

 



 

05000161.4 1 

SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

__________________________ 

________________, 2019 

__________________________ 
 
 
This Agreement is made and delivered on the above date by: 
 
Beneficiary: Serra Automotive, Inc. and Anthony and Mary Margaret Serra  
 
City:  City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Recitals 
 
 The Beneficiary expects and intends to expand and increase the tax and revenue base of the City 
by development of commercial enterprises within the corporate limits of the City. 
 
 The City has agreed to provide the Beneficiary, as provided herein, the within referenced Special 
Economic Development Payments. 
 
 Pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Alabama, and for the purposes, referenced herein, 
the City and the Beneficiary have delivered this Agreement. 
 

Agreement 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, the City and the Beneficiary hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 
 



 

 S-2 
05000161.4 

ARTICLE 1 
 
 DEFINITIONS 
 
 For purposes of this Agreement: 
 
 Affiliate shall mean, with respect to the Beneficiary, any other Person directly or indirectly 
controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, such specified Person. 
For purposes hereof, “control” means the authority and power, direct or indirect, to direct the 
management and policies of the specified Person, by ownership interest, contract, or otherwise, and 
the terms “controlling “ and “controlled” have meanings correlative to the foregoing. 
 

Annual Economic Development Payment shall mean, for each Annual Payment Date, an 
amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the City Business License Fee Revenue actually received by the 
City with respect to the business operating the Project on the Subject Real Property during each 
annual period for which such Annual Economic Development Payment is determined. 

Annual Payment Date shall mean March 1 (or the next succeeding Business Day) in each 
year. 

Annual Payment Period shall mean the period beginning on the Date of Commencement 
and ending on the first to occur of (i) the occurrence of three consecutive Annual Payment Dates 
thereafter; or (ii) that date on which the City shall have paid as Special Economic Development 
Payments an aggregate amount not less than the Total City Commitment; or (iii) termination of this 
Agreement by the City under Section 6.01(b). 

Beneficiary shall mean the Person in whose name this agreement is last registered on the 
Registration of Ownership attached hereto. 

Business Day shall mean any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday, (ii) a day on which 
banking institutions are authorized or required to be closed for business in the City, or (iii) a day on 
which the administrative and financial offices of the City are authorized or required to be closed. 

City Business License Fee Revenue shall mean the business license fees paid to the City 
with respect to the business operating the Project on the Subject Real Property. 

City Net Sales Tax Proceeds for any year shall (a) mean and include all proceeds and 
receipts of the City Sales Tax less and except proceeds of the City Sales Tax dedicated for public school 
purposes and capital reserves, and (b) not include any proceeds or receipts received by the City (i) from 
the levy by the City of privilege license or excise taxes not described in the definition of City Sales Tax 
or (ii) from the levy of privilege license or excise taxes of any kind, type or nature by taxing authorities 
other than the City or (iii) from any increase in the City Sales Tax enacted after the Date of Delivery. 



 

 S-3 
05000161.4 

City Sales Tax shall mean collectively the privilege license and excise taxes levied by the City 
(commonly called sales and use taxes) which consist of (i) a privilege or license (commonly called sales) 
tax on persons engaged in the business of selling at retail any tangible personal property within the 
City (subject to exemption of certain property as provided by law) or in the business of conducting 
places of amusement or entertainment within the City, generally measured by the gross sales or 
receipts of such businesses and (ii) an excise (commonly called a use) tax on the storage, use or other 
consumption of tangible personal property (subject to exemptions of certain property as provided by 
law) within the City, generally measured by the sales price of such property. 

Date of Commencement shall mean the first date on which all of the following shall have 
occurred: 

(a) the Date of Validation; and 

(b) the date on which a certificate of occupancy issued by the City for the Project shall 
have become effective; and 

(c) the date on which the Beneficiary shall have complied with the obligations thereof 
under Article 5(b). 

Date of Delivery shall mean ____________, 2019. 

Date of Termination shall mean the first date on which all of the following shall have 
occurred: 

(a) the date on which the Quarterly Payment Period shall have terminated; and 

(b) the date on which the Annual Payment Period shall have terminated. 

Date of Validation shall mean that date on which a judgment entered by the Circuit Court 
of Jefferson County, Alabama validating and confirming this Agreement shall have become forever 
conclusive in accordance with, and as provided in, Section 6-6-755 of the Code of Alabama 1975. 

Enabling Law shall mean Amendment No. 772 to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as 
amended, as at any time amended or supplemented, or any successor provision of law. 

Finance Director shall mean the Finance Director of the City and any successor to the duties 
and functions thereof. 

Governmental Authority shall mean and include any federal, state, county, municipal or 
other government, and any agency, authority, board, bureau, commission, court, department, or 
instrumentality thereof, having jurisdiction in the premises. 

Person shall mean and include any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
liability company or partnership, association, trust, unincorporated organization, and any government 
or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

Project shall mean and include those commercial and related facilities established by the 
Beneficiary at 1476 Montgomery Highway within the corporate limits of the City. 



 

 S-4 
05000161.4 

Quarterly Economic Development Payments shall mean, for each Quarterly Payment 
Date, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the City Net Sales Tax Proceeds actually received by 
the City derived from operation of the Project during each calendar quarter for which such Quarterly 
Economic Development Payment is determined. 

Quarterly Payment Date shall mean the first day of each January, April, July and October 
(or the next succeeding Business Day of any thereof) in each year. 

Quarterly Payment Period shall mean the period beginning on the Date of Commencement 
and ending on the first to occur of (i) the Quarterly Payment Date that next succeeds the expiration of 
38 consecutive calendar months; or (ii) that date on which the City shall have paid as Special Economic 
Development Payments an aggregate amount not less than the Total City Commitment; or (iii) 
termination of this Agreement by the City pursuant to Section 6.01(b). 

Serra Project Fund shall mean the fund established pursuant to Section 4.01. 

Special Economic Development Payments shall mean, collectively, the Quarterly 
Economic Development Payments and the Annual Economic Development Payments. 

State shall mean the State of Alabama. 

Subject Real Property shall mean the real property described on Exhibit A hereto. 

Total City Commitment shall mean the amount of Two Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand 
Three Hundred Seventy-Two Dollars ($232,372). 

 
 



 

 S-5 
05000161.4 

 ARTICLE 2 
 
 REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 SECTION 2.01  The City. 
 
 The City hereby represents and certifies as follows: 
 
 (a) (i) The City has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this 

Agreement pursuant to Amendment No. 772 to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as amended. 
 
  (ii) The expenditure of public funds for the purposes set forth in this Agreement (A) 

will result in direct financial benefits to the City and (B) will serve a valid and sufficient public 
purpose, notwithstanding any incidental benefit accruing to the Beneficiary or any private entity 
or entities. 

 
  (iii) The indebtedness of the City incurred pursuant to the Enabling Law is less than 

50 percent of the assessed value of the taxable property in the City as determined for state 
taxation for the fiscal year immediately preceding the Date of Delivery. 

 
  (b) There is no action, inquiry or proceeding by or before any Governmental Authority 

pending, or threatened in writing, by, against or concerning, the City which involves the validity, or 
performance by the City, of this Agreement. 
 

  (c) The City recites, certifies and declares that all acts, conditions, and things required by 
the Constitution of the State of Alabama of 1901, as amended, and the laws of the State of Alabama to 
exist, happen and be performed precedent to or in connection with the authorization and delivery of this 
Agreement do exist, have happened, and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required 
by law. 
 
 SECTION 2.02  The Beneficiary. 
 
 The Beneficiary hereby represents and certifies as follows: 
 

  (a) The Beneficiary are either duly organized, validly existing and in good standing as a 
corporation under the laws of the State of Alabama or are residents of Alabama and have duly authorized 
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.  
 

(b) The Beneficiary is qualified to do business in the State of Alabama to the extent 
required by the laws thereof. 

(c) The Beneficiary has made all filings, given all notices, and received all approvals or 
consents, required of the Beneficiary by any governmental authority in the jurisdiction of organization 
of the Beneficiary and the State of Alabama for the effectiveness and enforceability of this Agreement. 

(d) There is no action, inquiry or proceeding by or before any Governmental Authority 
pending, or threatened in writing, by, against, or concerning, the Beneficiary which involves the 
validity, or performance by the Beneficiary, of this Agreement. 



 

 S-6 
05000161.4 

 
 
 ARTICLE 3 
 
 DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement shall become effective on the Date of Validation and shall continue until, and 
terminate on, the Date of Termination, whereupon all such obligations of the City and Beneficiary shall 
be fully satisfied and discharged save and excepting any specific agreement or covenant which by its terms 
expressly survives termination of this Agreement. 
 
 

 ARTICLE 4 
 

THE SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PAYMENTS 
 

SECTION 4.01  Commencement; Serra Project Fund; Determination and Payment of 
Special Economic Development Payments. 

 
(a) The obligations of the City for the payment of the Special Economic Development 

Payments shall become effective on the Date of Commencement and shall continue thereafter in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement until the Date of Termination. 

 
(b) (i) The City establishes a special fund designated the “Serra Project Fund” to be 
held by the City for the purposes of this Agreement. 
 
 (ii) From and after the Date of Commencement the City shall deposit in the Serra 
Project Fund the amount of the City Net Sales Tax Proceeds and the City Business License 
Fee Revenue received by the City from or with respect to the Project when and as such amounts 
are actually received by the City. 
 
(c) The City orders and directs the Finance Director to pay to the Beneficiary, in 

accordance with written directions from the Beneficiary with respect thereto executed by Serra 
Automotive, Inc. and, Anthony and Mary Margaret Serra, indicating in whose name payment shall be 
made, solely from amounts then on deposit in the Serra Project Fund and in lawful money of the United 
States of America, subject to Section 4.02: 

 
 (i) on each Quarterly Payment Date which occurs during the Quarterly Payment 
Period the amount of the Quarterly Economic Development Payments determined by the 
Finance Director to be due and payable on such Quarterly Payment Date; and 
 
 (ii) on each Annual Payment Date which occurs during the Annual Payment 
Period the amount of the Annual Economic Development Payments determined by the Finance 
Director to be due and payable on such Annual Payment Date. 
 



 

 S-7 
05000161.4 

SECTION 4.02  Nature, Amount and Duration of Obligations of City. 
 
The City and the Beneficiary agree: 
 

 (a) Limited Obligation.  The obligation of the City for the payment of the Special Economic 
Development Payments: 

 
(i) is a limited obligation payable solely from the amounts on deposit in the Serra 

Project Fund allocable to the Special Economic Development Payments;  
 
(ii) shall never constitute a general obligation, or a charge against the general 

credit or taxing powers, of the City within the meaning of any constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation whatsoever; 

 
(iii) is subject to (A) all prior pledges of the City Net Sales Tax Proceeds and the 

City Business License Fee Revenue for the benefit of long term indebtedness of the City; (B) 
in accordance with Johnson v. Sheffield, 183 So. 265 (Ala. 1938), the law-imposed requirement 
that, if necessary, there must first be paid from all City Net Sales Tax Proceeds and the City 
Business License Fee Revenue (including without limitation the Special Economic 
Development Payments) the legitimate and necessary governmental expenses of operating the 
City; and (C) the application of bankruptcy, insolvency, and other laws affecting creditors’ 
rights. 

 
 (b) Maximum Amount.  The maximum amount the City shall pay under this Agreement 
shall be limited to and shall not exceed the Total City Commitment. 
 
 (c) No Recourse.  No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to be a covenant or agreement of any officer, agent, employee, or member of the governing body of the 
City in the individual capacity thereof and none of such parties or persons nor any officer executing 
this Agreement shall be liable personally on this Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the delivery of this Agreement. 
 
 (d) Duration and Termination.  Anything in this Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, the City shall have no obligation to pay any amount of Special Economic 
Development Payments under this Agreement after the Date of Termination. 
 

SECTION 4.03  Agreements of the City. 
 
(a) All proceedings of the governing body of the City heretofore had and taken, and all 

ordinances and resolutions adopted pursuant thereto with respect to the levy and collection of the City 
Sales Tax, are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects from and after the effective date thereof. 

 
(b) The City covenants and agrees the City shall, as long as this Agreement shall be 

outstanding, continue to levy and to provide for the assessment and collection of the privilege license 
and excise taxes which provide the City Net Sales Tax Proceeds at rates not less than those in effect 
on the date of this Agreement. 



 

 S-8 
05000161.4 

 
 ARTICLE 5 
 
 OBLIGATIONS OF THE BENEFICIARY 
 
 (a) The Beneficiary hereby agrees to duly and punctually observe and perform all agreements 
thereof under this Agreement. 
 
 (b) The Beneficiary covenants and agrees to convey and grant to the City such interests and 
rights in and to the Subject Real Property as set forth in the Plan Sheet provided to Beneficiary for CMAQ-
7030(600) by the Alabama Department of Transportation for the City to construct and maintain on the 
Subject Real Property such improvements and structures (including without limitation retaining walls) 
as shall be required for the City to improve Massey Road. 
 
 (c) The Beneficiary shall use the proceeds of the Special Economic Development Payments 
solely for the purpose of development and operation of the business interests of the Beneficiary within 
the City. 
 
 (d) The Beneficiary agrees to defend, protect, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its 
agents, employees, and members of its governing body, from and against all claims or demands, 
including actions or proceedings brought thereon, and all costs, expenses, and liabilities of any kind 
relating thereto, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and cost of suit, arising out of or resulting from 
any of the following, provided, however, that the foregoing indemnity will not extend to the negligent 
misconduct of the City, its agents, employees, and members of its governing body: (i) any construction 
activity performed by Beneficiary, or anyone claiming by through, or under Beneficiary; and (ii) any 
loss of life, personal injury, or damage to property arising from or in relation to the entry upon, construction, 
use, operation or occupancy of the Project, including, without limitation, tenants, customers and invitees of 
the Project or Beneficiary.  The agreements and covenants in this Article 5 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement with respect to events or occurrences happening prior to or upon the termination of this 
Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect until commencement of an action with respect to any 
thereof shall be prohibited by law. 
 



 

 S-9 
05000161.4 

ARTICLE 6 
 
 REMEDIES 
 
 SECTION 6.01  Remedies. 
 
 (a) The City and the Beneficiary may each proceed to protect its rights and interests by suit 
in equity, action at law or other appropriate proceedings, whether for the specific performance of any 
covenant or agreement of any other party herein contained or in aid of the exercise of any power or remedy 
available at law or in equity.   
 
 (b) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the City may terminate this 
Agreement, without further recourse or obligation hereunder, upon default in the performance, or breach, 
of any covenant or warranty of the Beneficiary in this Agreement and the continuance of such default or 
breach for a period of 30 days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Beneficiary 
by the City a written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating 
that such notice is a “notice of default” hereunder. 
 
 SECTION 6.02  Remedies Subject to Applicable Law. 
 
 All rights, remedies and powers provided by this Agreement may be exercised only to the extent 
the exercise thereof does not violate any applicable provision of law in the premises, and all the provisions 
of this Article are intended to be subject to all applicable mandatory provisions of law which may be 
controlling in the premises and to be limited to the extent necessary so that the same will not render this 
Agreement invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 



 

 S-10 
05000161.4 

 ARTICLE 7 
 
 ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION OF AGREEMENT BY BENEFICIARY 
 
 SECTION 7.01  Assignment of Interests and Rights by Beneficiary. 
 

(a) This Agreement is not negotiable and may be assigned and transferred by the Beneficiary 
only as provided in this Section.  

 
(b) The Beneficiary may assign the rights thereof to receive the Special Economic 

Development Payments under this Agreement to an Affiliate upon prior written notice of such assignment 
and the name, address, and cognizant persons of such Affiliate to the City Manager of the City. 

 
(c) The Beneficiary may pledge the rights thereof to receive the Special Economic 

Development Payments under this Agreement to a creditor of the Beneficiary upon prior written notice 
of the name, address and cognizant persons of such pledgee to, and the prior written consent thereto of, 
the Mayor and City Manager of the City. 

 
(d) The Beneficiary may assign, convey and transfer the rights and interests of the 

Beneficiary in and to this Agreement to another Person upon: 
 

(i) the prior consent thereto by resolution of the governing body of the City; and  
 
(ii) presentation of this Agreement to the City Manager of the City for endorsement 

of the ownership of the transferee on the Registration of Ownership hereon. 
 
 SECTION 7.02  Delegation of Duties and Obligations by Beneficiary. 
 
 The Beneficiary may delegate the performance and observance of the duties and obligations of 
the Beneficiary under this Agreement only upon the prior consent thereto by resolution of the governing 
body of the City. 
 
 SECTION 7.03  Assignees and Transferees of this Agreement Subject to Defenses and 
Rights of the City. 
 

(a) Each Person who acquires an interest in this Agreement shall be subject to all defenses 
and rights of the City at law or in equity and to all payments of Special Economic Development Payments 
theretofore made by the City. 

 
(b) This Agreement does not constitute a “negotiable instrument” within the meaning or for 

the purpose of, and a transferee of this Agreement will not have the rights and remedies of a “holder in 
due course” provided by, Article 3 of the Alabama Uniform Commercial Code. 

 
(c) This Agreement does not constitute a “financial asset” or a “security” within the meaning 

or for the purpose of, and a transferee of this agreement will not have the rights or remedies of a 
“purchaser” or “bona fide purchaser” provided by Article 8 of the Alabama Uniform Commercial Code. 
 



 

 S-11 
05000161.4 

ARTICLE 8 
 

PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

The City and the Beneficiary covenant and agree as follows: 
 

(a)  Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama without 
regard to principles of conflict of laws. 

(b)  Binding Effect: This Agreement shall be enforceable by and binding upon the 
respective successors and assigns of the undersigned. 

(c)  Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts each 
of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

(d)  Amendment: This Agreement may be amended only in writing duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by the City and the 
Beneficiary. 

(e)  Enforceability: If any provision herein shall be unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

(f)  Notices: Any notice given hereunder shall be delivered to the respective 
addresses set forth on the cover page hereof or as otherwise 
provided in writing. 

(g)  No Jury Trial: The City and the Beneficiary each (1) irrevocably waives, to the 
extent permitted by law, any right to trial by jury in any action 
or proceeding under, or related to, this Agreement and (2) 
agrees that no Person has represented (by expression or 
implication) that a party hereto would not seek to enforce such 
waiver in the event of litigation. 

(h)  No Joint Venture: This Agreement shall not operate or be construed to create a 
joint venture or partnership by the City and the Beneficiary. 

(i)  No Other Beneficiaries: This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the City and the 
Beneficiary and the successors and assigns thereof and no other 
Person shall have any benefit, interest or rights under or by 
virtue of this Agreement. 

(j)  Final and Full Contract: This Agreement shall constitute the final and full contractual 
agreement of the City and the Beneficiary and shall supersede 
all prior or other Agreements (written or oral) thereby relating 
to the subject matter hereof.  

 



 

05000161.4 S-1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be executed under seal and 
attested in the name of the City, and registered as a conditional claim against the City and the within 
Serra Project Fund and Special Economic Development Payments, by officers thereof duly authorized 
thereunto on the Date of Delivery. 
 
 
       CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
       By        
         Mayor 
 
 
       By        
S E A L         City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST:       
        City Clerk 
 
 



 

 S-2 
05000161.4 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Beneficiary has caused this Agreement to be executed under seal 
in the name of the Beneficiary by an officer or legal representative thereof duly authorized thereunto on 
the Date of Delivery. 
 
 

SERRA AUTOMOTIVE, INC.  
 

By: ____________________________________ 
     
   Its ___________________________ 
    

 
         ANTHONY  SERRA 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Signature 
 
 
       MARY MARGARET SERRA 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Signature 



 

05000161.4 

REGISTRATION OF OWNERSHIP 

This Agreement is recorded and registered on the records of the City of Vestavia Hills in the 
name of, and may be enforced by, the last Person named below. 

Date of 
Registration Beneficiary 

Signature of Authorized 
Officer of City 

Dated Date Serra Automotive, Inc. and 
Anthony Serra and Mary 

Margaret Serra 

 
____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

_____________ ____________________ ____________________ 

 
 



 

05000161.4 

VALIDATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

 Validated and confirmed by judgment of the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, State of 
Alabama entered on the ______ day of __________, 2019. 
 
 

  /s/                                                            
Clerk of Circuit Court of Jefferson County,  
State of Alabama 

 
 



 

05000161.4 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Description of Subject Real Property 
 

 



 

05000161.4 

Section 3. 

(a) The Mayor and the Finance Director are each hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver the Special Economic Development Agreement for and on behalf of and in the 
name of the City.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to affix the official seal of the 
City to the Special Economic Development Agreement and to attest the same. 

(b) The Mayor, the City Manager, the Finance Director and the officers of the City are 
each hereby authorized and directed to take all such actions, and execute, deliver and perform all 
such agreements, documents, instruments, notices, and petitions and proceedings, with respect to 
the Special Economic Development Agreement, as such officers shall determine to be necessary or 
desirable to carry out the provisions of this resolution or the Special Economic Development 
Agreement or duly and punctually observe and perform all agreements and obligations of the City 
under the Special Economic Development Agreement. 

Section 4. The City desires, before the delivery of the Special Economic Development 
Agreement, to determine the authority of the City to deliver and perform the Agreement, the 
legality of all proceedings had and taken in connection therewith, and the validity of the means 
provided for the payment of the obligations of the City thereunder and of the covenants and 
provisions thereof, and does hereby authorize and direct Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C., as special 
counsel to the City, to file a petition in the name and on behalf of the City against the taxpayers 
and citizens of the City in the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama, pursuant to Article 17 
of Chapter 6 of Title 6 of the Code of Alabama 1975 and in connection therewith to file all such 
certificates, documents, instruments and proceedings, and to take all such actions, as shall be 
necessary or desirable to effect the judicial validation of the Agreement. 

 
Section 5. All prior actions taken, and agreements, documents or notices executed and 

delivered, by any officer or other representative of the City, in connection with the agreements, 
covenants, and undertakings of the City hereby approved, or in connection with the preparation of 
the Special Economic Development Agreement and the terms and provisions thereof, are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, orders, or parts of any thereof, of the Council 
in conflict, or inconsistent, with any provision of this resolution hereby are, to the extent of such 
conflict or inconsistency, repealed. 
 
 Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 



 

05000161.4 

After said resolution had been discussed and considered in full by the Council, it was moved 
by Councilmember _____________ that said resolution be now placed upon its final passage and 
adopted.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember _____________.  The question being put as 
to the adoption of said motion and the final passage and adoption of said resolution, the roll was 
called with the following results: 
 

Ayes: Ashley C. Curry, Mayor 
 Kimberly Cook 
 Paul J. Head 
 George Pierce 
 Rusty Weaver 

 
 Nays:  None 
 

The Mayor thereupon declared said motion carried and the resolution passed and adopted 
as introduced and read. 

 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2880 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2880 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-4 OF THE VESTAVIA 
HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 
“VESTAVIA HILLS ATHLETIC COMPLEX CAHABA HEIGHTS” 
TO RENAME THE PARK AS “CAHABA HEIGHTS PARK,” TO RE-
ADOPT RULES AND REGULATIONS, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2637 IN ITS ENTIRETY FOR REGULATION OF THE 
HOURS OF OPERATION, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE 
CAHABA HEIGHTS PARK 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted amended rules, regulations and hours of operation for 

Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these rules, regulations and hours of operation to the 

City Council for consideration; and 

WHEREAS, February 22, 2016, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

Number 2637, an Ordinance amending previous ordinances, naming the park as “Vestavia 

Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights” and setting forth rules and regulations for the 

operation of the park; and 

WHEREAS, in 2019, the Council adopted the Community Spaces and 

Infrastructure Plan which included a project to completely renovate and redesign the park; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board has considered and recommended to 

the City Council to rename the park as “Cahaba Heights Park” in keeping with other parks 

in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the best 

interest of the public to amend Ordinance Number 2637 in its entirety to rename the park 

as Cahaba Heights Park and to re-adopt said amended rules, regulations and hours of 

operation for the Cahaba Heights Park. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT SECTION 12-4 OF THE 

VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 SHALL BE 



Ordinance Number 2880 
Page 2 

 

ENTITLED “CAHABA HEIGHTS PARK” AND ORDINANCE NUMBER 2637 IS 

HEREBY AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1.  DESIGNATION: 

 

1. The fields, press boxes, etc., located adjacent to the Vestavia Hills 

Elementary Cahaba Heights in the city shall be known and designated as 

the "Cahaba Heights Park". Each reference to such athletic complex in an 

ordinance, map, resolution, document, record or other paper of the City of 

Vestavia Hills shall be deemed to be a reference to the "Cahaba Heights." 

 

SECTION 2.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

 

(1) Cahaba Heights Park shall open at 6:30 a.m. and close at sunset except for 

events scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. Unauthorized 

individuals in the park after closing can be subject to penalties described in 

Section 3.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 

(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 

off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic down 

time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, is allowed off of the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, and dumping are 

prohibited.  



Ordinance Number 2880 
Page 3 

 

(7) Fireworks, explosives, or slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times. Any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area. 

Pets are not allowed on any athletic surfaces including, but not limited to, 

baseball fields, softball fields, soccer fields, football fields, lacrosse fields, 

tennis courts or basketball courts.  

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his designee 

and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or deposit) may be 

required prior to a permit being issued. 

(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 2. 

 

SECTION 3. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provision of this 

Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor violation for each such offense.  Each day any violation 

of this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense.   

 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 



Ordinance Number 2880 
Page 4 

 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2880 shall become effective immediately 

upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2880 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 13th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2880 
Page 5 

 

      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 5196 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5196 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 25, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 13th day of November, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of November, 2019. 

2. That on the 24th day of February, 2020, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5196 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5196 
Page 2 

 
2312 St. Joseph Road 

Lot 22, St. Joseph Retreat 
Vincent and Julie Poppalardo, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Subject
Property

DOLLY
 RIDGE

ALTA
DENA

RILLW
OOD

AL
TA

 G
LE

N

SQUIRE

BLUE JAY

ST
ON

Y B
RA

NC
H

MA
GN

OL
IA

ST
 JO

SE
PH

RID
GE

 CR
ES

T

CALDWELL MILL

CARDINAL

ALTAVIEW

RIDGE CREST

2312 St. Joseph Rd

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road







2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road



2312 St. Joseph Road



Ordinance Number 2881 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2881 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Vincent and Julie Poppalardo 

dated June 25, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2312 St. Joseph Road 
Lot 22, St. Joseph Retreat 

Vincent and Julie Poppalardo 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2881 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2881 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 13th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2881 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5197 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5197 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated September 10, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 13th day of November, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of November 2019. 

2. That on the 24th day of February, 2020, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5197 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5197 
Page 2 

 
2801 Gresham Drive 

Lot 13, Gresham Woods Subdivision 
Carla and Robert Ingram, Jr., Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Subject
Property

AL
TA

DE
NA

DOLLY
 RIDGE

SQUIRE

AL
TA

 GL
EN

GR
ES

HA
M

WHETSTONE

MILLWOOD
MILLBROOK

ASPEN COVE

CALDWELL MILL

MA
GN

OL
IA

RILLW
OOD

SHADY COVE

CO
VE

NT
RY

AP
RI

L

ROCKY RIDGE

SETTLERS

NORWICH

BLUE JAY

SAGEWOOD

REDBUD

ST
ON

Y B
RA

NC
H

CO
UN

TR
YR

ID
GE

BIR
CH

W
OO

D

ST
 JO

SE
PH

SO
UT

HM
IN

ST
ER

MILLER HILL

WATER OAK

SAGEBROOK

DOLLY BROOK

DA
NA

TIMBERLIN
E

POPLAR POST

OAK LEAF

TANGLECREEK

RID
GE

 CR
ES

T

CARDINAL

THORNHILL

HIDDEN RIDGE

ALTADENA

COVENTRY

SETTLERS

MI
LLW

OO
D

MILLBROOK

2801 Gresham Dr

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_Parcels
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

³
2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive











2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



2801 Gresham Drive



Ordinance Number 2882 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2882 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Carla and Robert Ingram, Jr. dated 

September 10, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2801 Gresham Drive 
Lot 13, Gresham Woods Subdivision 

Carla and Robert Ingram, Jr. 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2882 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2882 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 13th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2882 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5198 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5198 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated September 1, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 13th day of November, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of November, 2019. 

2. That on the 24th day of February, 2020, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5198 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5198 
Page 2 

 
2637 Alta Glen Drive 

Jimit Parekh and Pallavi Shah, Owner(s) 
 
More Particularly Described As Follows: 
 

Begin at the NE corner of the SW¼ of NE¼, Section 33, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, thence an angle to the left 85° 55' and run West along 
the North line of said quarter-quarter section for 374.95 feet to the Easterly 
line of County Road; thence an angle to the left of 64°10' and Southwesterly 
along the Easterly line of said road for 956 feet to the point of beginning; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 89°31' and run Southeast 435.60 feet, 
thence turn an angle to the right and run along a line parallel to the road in 
a Southwesterly direction for 200 feet; thence turn an angle to the right and 
run in a Northwesterly direction along a One parallel to the aforesaid 435.60 
feet length to the East line of said road; thence an angle to the right and run 
in a Northeasterly direction along said road to the point of beginning.  
Situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



I45
9 S

I45
9 N

AL
TA

DE
NA

 RD

AL
TA

 GL
EN

 DR

DOLLY
 RIDGE RD

I45
9  N

ELM
ER

 J B
ISSE

LL 
RD

DE
NY

SE
 DR

ACTON RD

JEN
NY L

N

ALT
A V

IEW
 DR

GR
ES

HA
M 

DR
RILLW

OOD RD

AL
TA

DE
NA

 LA
KE

 DR

COUNTRYRIDGE DR

ALTADENA DR

SETTLERS LN

BRIARWOOD WAY

VALLEY CIR REDWING DR
APRIL DR

ALTARIDGE DR

REDBUD LN

LO
NG

LE
AF

 ST

ALTABROOK DR

ALTA
DENA RIDGE DR

ALTADENA PARK LN

SHADY COVE DR

BR
IAR

WOOD T
RC

AC
TO

N 
CI

R
HICKORY RIDGE CIR

AC
TO

N 
PA

RK
 LN

COUNTRYRIDGE CIR

DO
LL

Y B
RO

OK
 LN

DABNEY DR

LONGLEAF TRL

AC
TO

N 
PA

RK
 C

IR

RID
GE

 CR
ES

T L
N

BONNER WAY

AC
TO

N 
PA

RK
 W

AY

ALTA
DENA R

IDGE CIR

AC
TO

N R
D

Subject
Property

2637 Alta Glen Drive

³

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 







2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 



2637 Alta Glen Drive 



Ordinance Number 2883 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2883 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Jimit Parekh and Pallavi Shah 

dated September 1, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2637 Alta Glen Drive 
Jimit Parekh and Pallavi Shah 

More Particularly Described As Follows: 

Begin at the NE corner of the SW¼ of NE¼, Section 33, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, thence an angle to the left 85° 55' and run West along 
the North line of said quarter-quarter section for 374.95 feet to the Easterly 
line of County Road; thence an angle to the left of 64°10' and Southwesterly 



Ordinance Number 2883 
Page 2 

 

along the Easterly line of said road for 956 feet to the point of beginning; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 89°31' and run Southeast 435.60 feet, 
thence turn an angle to the right and run along a line parallel to the road in 
a Southwesterly direction for 200 feet; thence turn an angle to the right and 
run in a Northwesterly direction along a One parallel to the aforesaid 435.60 
feet length to the East line of said road; thence an angle to the right and run 
in a Northeasterly direction along said road to the point of beginning.  
Situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
  



Ordinance Number 2883 
Page 3 

 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2883 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 13th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2883 
Page 4 

 

 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2884 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
USE AGREEMENT TO LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING AND MAINTAINING A FIBER-OPTIC 
TRANSMISSION LINE WITHIN CERTAIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

WHEREAS, LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC (hereinafter referred to as the “the 
Company”) desires to construct a fiber-optic transmission line within certain public rights-of-way 
within the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the Company agrees and recognizes that it is required to obtain consent in 
the form of a right-of-way use agreement from the City of Vestavia Hills in order to construct the 
proposed fiber-optic transmission line within the corporate limits of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to accommodate the Company’s request and grant a 
right-of-way use agreement for the construction of the proposed fiber-optic transmission line in 
accordance with the terms and conditions contained herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills does hereby grant to LEVEL 3 
COMMUNICATIONS, LLC a non-exclusive right-of-way use agreement granting the limited 
authority to construct a fiber-optic transmission line in the City of Vestavia Hills in and along 
certain rights-of-way outlined in Exhibit A below, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in 
the following agreement: 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into on this the 13th day of November, 2019, by and between 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), and LEVEL 3 
COMMUNICATIONS, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as the “The Company”). 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

The City and The Company do hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. Defined Terms.  For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms, 
words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth below.  When not inconsistent with the 
context, words used in the singular number shall include the plural number, and words in the plural 
number shall include the singular. 

1.1 “City” means the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 2 of 14 

 1.2 “Governing Body” or “City Council” means the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
 1.3 “Gross Receipts” means Gross Receipts on recurring Telecommunications Services 
that originate or terminate within the corporate limits of the City.  Gross Receipts shall not include 
revenues or receipts arising from or relating to Telecommunication Services that both originate 
and terminate outside the corporate limits of the City. 
 
 1.4 “Local Telecommunications Service Revenues” are defined as all revenues 
received by the Provider from its customer for providing the transport of voice, data and/or video 
signals within the municipal limits of the City. 
 
 1.5 “Person” means any natural or corporate person, business association or other 
business entity including, but not limited to, a partnership, sole proprietorship, political 
subdivision, public or private agency of any kind, utility, successor or assign of any of the 
foregoing, or any other legal entity.   
 
 1.6 “Rights-of-way” means the surface and space above and below any public street, 
boulevard, road, highway, freeway, lane, alley, sidewalk, parkway, driveway, public ways, or other 
public rights-of-way, including, public utility easements, dedicated utility strips or rights-of-way 
dedicated for compatible uses held by the City or location within the City which shall entitle the 
City and the Company to use the same for the purpose of installing, operating, repairing and 
maintaining the System.   
 
 1.7 “System” shall mean a system of pipes, transmission lines, meters, equipment and 
all other facilities associated with the operation of a fiber-optic transmission line by the Company 
in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.  
 
 1.8 “Telecommunications” means the transmission, between or among points specified 
by the user, or information of the user’s choosing (e.g., data, video, and voice), without change in 
the form or content of the information as sent and received.  
 
 1.9 “Telecommunication Service(s)” means the offering of Telecommunications for a 
fee directly to the public, or to such classes of users as to be effectively available directly to the 
public. 
 
 2.0 “Telecommunication System” means the cables, wire, lines, towers, wave guides, 
optic fiber, antennae, and any associated converters, equipment or facilities designated and 
constructed for the purpose of producing, receiving, amplifying or distributing 
Telecommunications to or from locations within the City. 
 
 2.1 “Use Fee” means the fee paid by a Provider to the City for locating and maintaining 
facilities in the rights-of-way. 
 

SECTION 2. Grant of Authority.  The City hereby grants to the Company the non-
exclusive and limited authority to construct, install and maintain a fiber-optic transmission line in 
and along the rights-of-way in the City of Vestavia Hills as described and depicted in Exhibit A 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 3 of 14 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference (hereinafter referred to as the “System”).   
The Company shall not expand or extend the System installed or constructed within the City 
pursuant to this Agreement without approval from the City Council, in its sole discretion. 
 

SECTION 3. Compensation.  Five percent (5%) of its quarterly Gross Receipts on 
recurring facilities-based Local Telecommunications Services revenues for services originating or 
terminating within the City’s corporate limits.  
  

SECTION 4. Duration and Term.  The right-of-way use agreement granted hereunder 
shall be for an initial term of twenty (20) years (the “Initial Term”) commencing on the effective 
date of this Ordinance and Agreement, unless otherwise lawfully renewed, revoked or terminated 
as herein provided.  Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, the Company or the City shall have 
the option to renew this Agreement for one additional term of twenty (20) years, subject to the 
terms and conditions contained herein, by giving written notice, sixty (60) days before the 
expiration of the Initial Term, to the other party of that party’s intent to renew this Agreement for 
the additional term. 
 

SECTION 5. Grant of Non-Exclusive Authority.  The right to use and occupy the rights-
of-way for the purposes herein set forth shall not be exclusive, and the City reserves the right to 
grant the use of said rights-of-way to any person at any time and for any lawful purpose.  This 
Agreement shall not be construed to create any rights beyond the terms, conditions and periods set 
forth in this Agreement, except as provided herein.  The City does not warrant any of the rights 
granted by this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 6. Reservation of Regulatory and Police Powers.  The City, by the granting of 
this right-of-way use agreement and approving this Agreement, does not surrender or to any extent 
lose, waive, impair or lessen the lawful powers and rights now, or which may be hereafter, vested 
in the City under the Constitution and the statutes of the State of Alabama to regulate the use of its 
rights-of-way by the Company or any person or to charge reasonable compensation for such use, 
and the Company, by its acceptance of this right-of-way use agreement and Agreement, agrees 
that all lawful powers and rights, regulatory power, police power or otherwise, that may be from 
time to time vested in or reserved to the City, shall be in full force and effect and subject to the 
exercise thereof by the City at any time.  The Company is deemed to acknowledge that its rights 
are subject to the regulatory and police powers of the City to adopt and enforce ordinances 
necessary for the safety and welfare of the public and agrees to comply with all applicable laws 
and ordinances enacted by the City pursuant to such powers. 
 
 Any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any other present or future lawful 
exercise of the City’s police powers shall be resolved in favor of the latter. 
 

SECTION 7. Standards of Service.   
 
  7.1. Conditions of Street Occupancy.  All portions of the System and all associated 
equipment installed or erected by the Company pursuant to this Agreement shall be located so as 
to cause minimum interference with the proper use of the rights-of-way and with the rights and 
reasonable convenience of property owners who own property that adjoins any of such rights-of-
way. 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 4 of 14 

 
7.2 Restoration of Rights-of-way.  If during the course of the Company's construction, 

operation or maintenance of the System there occurs a disturbance of any rights-of-way by the 
Company, it shall, at its expense, replace and restore such rights-of-way to a condition comparable 
to the condition of the rights-of-way existing immediately prior to such disturbance to the 
satisfaction of the City. The work to be done under this Agreement, and the restoration of rights-
of-way as required herein, must be completed within the dates specified in any permits authorizing 
the work.  The Company shall perform the work according to the standards and with the materials 
specified or approved by the City Engineer. 

 
7.3 Relocation at Request of the City.  Upon its receipt of reasonable notice, not to be 

less than forty-five (45) days, except where emergency conditions require shorter notice, the 
Company shall, at its own expense, protect, support, temporarily disconnect, relocate in the rights-
of-way, or remove from the rights-of-way, any property of the Company when lawfully required 
by the City by reason of traffic conditions, public safety, street abandonment, freeway and street 
construction, change or establishment of street grade, installation of sewers, drains, gas or water 
pipes, electrical or telecommunications lines, when such installation or construction is being done 
directly by or for the City. Should the Company refuse or fail to remove its equipment or plant as 
provided for herein within forty-five (45) days after written notification, the City shall have the 
right to do such work or cause it to be done, and the reasonable cost thereof shall be chargeable to 
the Company. 
 

7.4 Trimming of Trees and Shrubbery.  The Company shall reasonably compensate the 
City for any damages, in such amounts as determined by the City, caused by trimming, cutting or 
removing trees or shrubbery, or shall, at its own expense, replace all trees or shrubs damaged as a 
result of any construction, installation, repair or maintenance of the System undertaken by the 
Company to the satisfaction of the City.   
 
  7.5. Safety and Permit Requirements. Construction, installation, repair and maintenance 
of the System shall be performed in an orderly and workmanlike manner.  All such work shall be 
performed in substantial compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and 
regulations, including all permit requirements and ordinances adopted by the City which are now 
in effect or are hereafter adopted.  The System or parts thereof shall not unreasonably endanger or 
interfere with the safety of persons or property in the area.  
 
  7.6. Minimum Standards.  All of the construction by the Company shall conform, at a 
minimum, to the minimum standards of the Company.  In the event there is a conflict between the 
standards adopted by the Company and any applicable federal, state or local standards, including 
ordinances adopted by the City, the stricter standard shall apply. 
 
  7.7. Obstructions of Rights-of-Way.  Except in the case of an emergency, or with the 
approval of the City Engineer, no rights-of-way obstruction or excavation may be performed when 
seasonally prohibited or when conditions are unreasonable for such work. 
 
  The Company shall not so obstruct the rights-of-way so as to interfere with the natural, free 
and clear passage of water through the gutters, drains, ditches or other waterways. 
 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 5 of 14 

  7.8. Safety Requirements. 
 
  A. The Company shall at all times employ the highest degree of care as is 
commensurate with the practical operation of its business and shall install and maintain in use 
commonly accepted methods and devices for preventing failures and accidents which are likely to 
cause damage, injuries or nuisances to the public. 
 
  B. The Company shall install and maintain the System in accordance with the 
requirements of all applicable regulations of the City, which may be amended from time to time, 
and in such manner that its operations will not interfere with any installations of the City or of a 
public utility serving the City. 
 
  C. All structures and all lines, equipment and connections in, over, under and upon the 
rights-of-way, wherever situated or located, shall at all times be kept and maintained in a safe and 
suitable condition and in good order and repair. 
 
  D. The Company shall maintain a force of employees at all times sufficient to provide 
safe, adequate and prompt service for the System.  
 
 7.9. Least Disruptive Technology.  The Company is encouraged to perform construction and 
maintenance of the System in a manner resulting in the least amount of damage and disruption to 
the rights-of-ways.  However, underground installation shall be a last resort and only upon consent 
of the City.  The Company will be required to use trenchless technology for any portion of 
construction or maintenance projects which lie beneath the paved or improved portion of any 
roadway to which this Agreement applies, unless otherwise approved by the City Council.  The 
City Engineer may require trenchless technology in other locations, where circumstances prevent 
or make open-cut methods impractical.  The Company may use either the open-cut method or 
trenchless technology for construction outside the paved or improved portion of any roadway to 
which this Agreement applies.   
 

SECTION 8. Enforcement and Termination of Agreement. 
 
  8.1.   Notice of Violation.  In the event the Company has not complied with the terms of 
this Agreement, the City shall notify the Company in writing of the nature of the alleged 
noncompliance. 
 
  8.2.  Right to Cure or Respond.  The Company shall have 30 days from receipt of the 
notice described in Section 8.1:  (a) to respond to the City by contesting the assertion of 
noncompliance, (b) to cure such default, or (c) in the event that, by the nature of default, such 
default cannot, for reasons beyond the control of the Company, be cured within the 30-day period, 
initiate reasonable steps to remedy such default and notify the City of the steps being taken and 
the projected date that they will be completed. 
 
  8.3.  Public Hearing.  In the event the Company fails to respond to the notice described 
in Section 8.1 or contests the assertion of noncompliance pursuant to the procedures set forth in 
Section 8.2, or in the event the alleged default is not remedied within 30 days or by the date 
projected pursuant to 8.2(c) above, the City shall schedule a public hearing to investigate the 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 6 of 14 

default.  Such public hearing shall be held at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City 
which is scheduled at a time not less than five business days therefrom.  The City shall notify the 
Company in writing of the time and place of such meeting and provide the Company with an 
opportunity to be heard. 
 
  8.4. Enforcement.  In the event the City, after such meeting, determines that the 
Company is in default of any provision of this Agreement, the City may pursue any or all of the 
following remedies: 
 

A. Seek specific performance of any provision which reasonably 
lends itself to such a remedy;  

 
B. Make a claim against any surety or performance bond which 

may be required to be posted; 
 

C. Restrain by injunction the default or reasonably anticipated 
default by the Company of any provision of this Agreement; 

 
D. Seek any other available remedy permitted by law or in equity;  

 
E. In the case of a material default of this Agreement, declare the 

Agreement to be revoked in accordance with the following: 
 

(1) The City shall give written notice to the Company of its 
intent to revoke the Right-of-Way Use Agreement on the basis 
of noncompliance by the Company.  The notice shall set forth 
the exact nature of the noncompliance.  The Company shall have 
30 days from such notice to object in writing and to state its 
reasons for such objection.  In the event the City has not received 
a satisfactory response from the Company, it may then seek 
termination of this Agreement at a public meeting.  The City 
shall cause to be served upon the Company, at least 10 days prior 
to such public meeting, a written notice specifying the time and 
place of such meeting and stating its intent to seek such 
termination. 

 
(2) At the designated meeting, the City shall give the Company 
an opportunity to state its position on the matter, after which it 
shall determine whether or not this Agreement shall be 
terminated.  The Company may appeal such determination to the 
Circuit Court of Jefferson County, which shall have the power 
to review the decision of the City and to modify or reverse such 
decision as justice may require.  Such appeal must be taken 
within 30 days of the issuance of the determination by the City. 

 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 7 of 14 

(3) The City may, in its sole discretion, take any lawful action 
which it deems appropriate to enforce the City's rights under this 
Agreement in lieu of revocation of the Agreement.  

  
 8.5.  Impossibility of Performance.  The Company shall not be held in default or noncompliance 
with the provisions of this Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating thereto, 
where such noncompliance or alleged defaults are caused by strikes, acts of God, power outages 
or other events reasonably beyond its ability to control. 
 

 
SECTION 9. Default.  Each of the following shall constitute a material default by the 

Company: 
 

 (1) Failure to make any payments to the City required to be 
made as set forth in this Agreement within thirty (30) days 
following written notice to the Company; 

 
(2) Failure to maintain a liability insurance policy that is not 
cured within thirty (30) days following written notice to the 
Company; 

 
(3) Failure to provide or furnish any information required under 
this Agreement to the City that is not cured within thirty (30) 
days following written notice to the Company; 

 
(4) Any breach or violation of any ordinance, rule or regulation 
or any applicable safety or construction requirements or 
regulations that present a threat to health or safety that has not 
been cured within thirty (30) days written notice; 

 
(5) The occurrence of any event relating to the financial status 
of the Company which may reasonably lead to the foreclosure 
or other judicial or non-judicial sale of all or any material part of 
the System or the assets of the Company;  

 
(6) The condemnation by a public authority, other than the 
City, or sale or dedication under threat or in lieu of 
condemnation, of all or substantially all of the facilities; or 

 
(7) If (a) the Company shall make an assignment for the benefit 
of creditors, shall become and be adjudicated insolvent, shall 
petition or apply to any tribunal for, or consent to, the 
appointment of, or taking possession by, a receiver, custodian, 
liquidator or trustee or similar official pursuant to state or local 
laws, ordinances or regulations of any substantial part of its 
property or assets, including all or any part of the System; (b) a 
writ of attachment, execution, distraint, levy, possession or any 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 8 of 14 

similar process shall be issued by any tribunal against all or any 
material part of the Company’s property or assets; (c) any 
creditor of the Company petitions or applies to any tribunal for 
the appointment of, or taking possession by, a trustee, receiver, 
custodian, liquidator or similar official for the Company or for 
any material parts of the property or assets of the Company 
under the law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in 
effect, and a final order, judgment or decree is entered 
appointing any such trustee, receiver, custodian, liquidator or 
similar official, or approving the petition in any such 
proceeding; or (d) any final order, judgment or decree is entered 
in any proceedings against the Company decreeing the voluntary 
or involuntary dissolution of the Company. 

  
SECTION 10. Prior to any excavation within the rights-of-way, the Company shall obtain 

a permit from the City pursuant to this Agreement, and the work shall be performed in accordance 
with all applicable ordinances and codes and any subsequent ordinances or regulations that may 
be adopted by the City.  Repair and replacement of the rights-of-ways due to the Company’s 
installation, removal, relocation, maintenance and repair of its System or facilities shall be 
accomplished to the satisfaction of the City. 
 

SECTION 11.   Insurance.  The Company shall maintain in full force and effect, at its 
own cost and expense, a comprehensive general liability insurance policy in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00 for bodily injury and property damage per person and $3,000,000.00 as to each 
occurrence, satisfactory to the City.  In addition, the Company shall obtain worker’s compensation 
coverage as required by the laws of the State of Alabama.  The City shall be named as an additional 
insured on the policy, and the Company shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance 
designating the City as an additional insured on each policy and extension or renewal thereof.  An 
endorsement shall be included with the policy that states that the policy shall not be cancelled 
without giving thirty (30) days written notice of such cancellation to the City. 
 

SECTION 12. Indemnity and Hold Harmless. The Company agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the City, its elected officers, employees, agents, and representatives, 
against all claims, costs, losses, expenses, demands, actions, or causes of action, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs and expenses of litigation, which may be asserted against 
or incurred by the City or for which the City may be liable, which arise from the negligence or 
willful misconduct, of the Company, its employees, agents, or subcontractors arising out of the 
construction, operation, maintenance, upgrade, repair or removal of Facilities except for those 
claims, costs, losses, expenses, demands, actions, or causes of action which arise solely from the 
negligence, willful misconduct, or other fault of the City.  The City does not and shall not waive 
any rights against the Company which it may have by reason of this indemnification, or because 
of the acceptance by, or the Company’s deposit with the City of any of the insurance policies 
described in this Agreement.  The indemnification by the Company shall apply to all damages, 
penalties and claims of any kind, regardless of whether any insurance policy shall have been 
determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for damages. 

 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 9 of 14 

SECTION 13. Disclaimer of Warranties.  The City makes no representation or 
warranty regarding its rights to authorize the installation or operation of the System on any 
particular right-of-way, and the burden and responsibility for making such determination in 
advance of the installation shall be upon the Company.  This Agreement shall not be construed to 
deprive the City of any rights or privileges which it now has, or may hereafter have, to regulate 
the use and control of its streets. 
 

SECTION 14. Warranties and Representations.  The Company hereby agrees, 
represents and warrants that it is legally authorized to enter into this Agreement in accordance with 
all applicable laws, rules and regulations.  Furthermore, the Company further agrees, represents 
and warrants that this Agreement is legal, valid and binding, and that it is required to obtain 
authorization and consent from the City prior to the construction, installation, operation or 
maintenance of the System. 
 

SECTION 15. Other Obligations.  Obtaining a right-of-way use agreement 
pursuant to this Agreement does not relieve the Company of its duty to obtain all other necessary 
permits, licenses, authority and the payment of fees required by any other City, county, state or 
federal rules, laws or regulations, and the Company is responsible for all work done in the rights-
of-way pursuant to this Agreement, regardless of who performs the work. 
 

SECTION 16. Payment of Costs.  The Company shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with the installation, repair and maintenance of the System and all associated equipment 
including, but not limited to (1) the costs to repair the rights-of-way due to the installation, repair 
and maintenance of the System, and (2) the costs incurred in removing or relocating any portion 
of the System or facilities constructed when required by the City. 
 

SECTION 17. Priority of Use.  This Agreement does not establish any priority for 
the use of the rights-of-way by the Company or any present or future franchisees or permit holders.  
In the event of any dispute as to the priority of use of the rights-of-way, the first priority shall be 
to the public generally, the second priority to the City, the third priority to the State of Alabama 
and its political subdivisions in the performance of their various functions, and thereafter, as 
between franchisees and other permit holders, as determined by the City in the exercise of its 
powers, including the police powers and other powers reserved to and conferred on it by the State 
of Alabama.  
 

SECTION 18. Immigration.  By signing this Agreement, the contracting parties 
affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, that they will not violate federal immigration law or 
knowingly employ, hire for employment or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the 
State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall 
be deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

 
SECTION 19. Notice.  Every notice or response required by this Agreement to be 

served upon the City or the Company shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
given to the required party three (3) business days after having been posted in a properly sealed 
and correctly addressed envelope when hand delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid as follows: 
  

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 10 of 14 

 
The notices or responses to the City shall be addressed as follows: 
   
   City of Vestavia Hills,  
   ATTENTION: Jeff Downes 
   City Manager, City of Vestavia Hills 
   1032 Montgomery Highway 
   Vestavia Hills, AL 35216  
 
   With a copy to: 
 
   Patrick H. Boone, Esq. 
   City Attorney, Vestavia Hills 
   215 Richard Arrington Jr. Blvd. 
   Suite 705 
   Birmingham, AL 35203  
 
The notices or responses to the Company shall be addressed as follows: 
 
   Level 3 Communications, LLC 
   Attn:  ROW/NIS. 
   1025 Eldorado Blvd.  
   Broomfield, CO 80021 
 
   With a copy to: 
 
   Level 3 Communications, LLC 
   Attn: General Counsel 
   931 14th Street 
   Denver, CO 80202 
 

SECTION 20. The City and The Company may designate such other address or 
addresses from time to time by giving written notice to the other party as set forth in this section. 
 

SECTION 21. Application.  The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement shall 
apply to all areas within the corporate limits of the City and those areas annexed by the City after 
the passage and approval of this Ordinance and Agreement. 
 

SECTION 22. Acceptance.  The Company’s acceptance of this Agreement shall be in 
writing in a form approved by the City Attorney and shall be accompanied by delivery of all 
payments, insurance certificates, applications, acceptance fees and performance of other 
requirements relating to commencement of construction as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 11 of 14 

SECTION 23. Assignment.  The Company shall not assign, sell or transfer this 
Agreement in whole or in part without the prior written consent of the City, which consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may assign this 
Agreement without prior written consent but upon notice to an Affiliate, successor through merger, 
or acquirer of all or substantially all of its assets, so long as the assignee has the capacity to fulfill 
the requirements set forth in this Agreement, or to be in compliance with the rules and/or 
regulations of any regulatory agency, governmental agency, legislative body or court of competent 
jurisdiction. Any attempted assignment in violation of this provision is null and void. 
 

SECTION 24. Miscellaneous.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be 
held and construed to include any other gender, and words in singular number shall be held to 
include the plural and vice versa, unless context requires otherwise.  The captions used in 
connection with the sections of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be deemed 
to construe or limit the meaning of the language contained in this Agreement, or be used in 
interpreting the meanings and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 25. Rules of Construction.  The parties hereto acknowledge that each party 
and its counsel have had the opportunity to review and revise this Agreement, and the normal rule 
of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall 
not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits thereto. 
 

SECTION 26. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in 
the State of Alabama and the validity of the same, its construction, interpretation, enforcement and 
the rights of the parties hereunder, shall be determined under, governed by and construed in 
accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Alabama, without giving effect to any choice 
of law provisions arising thereunder. 
 

SECTION 27. Severability Clause.  If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance 
shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 
invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect 
notwithstanding such holding. 
 

SECTION 28. Repealer Clause. 	Any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance is hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict. 
 

SECTION 29. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective only upon receipt 
of a written unconditional acceptance by the Company of the terms and conditions contained 
herein within thirty (30) days of the passage of this Ordinance. 

  

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 12 of 14 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 13th day of November, 2019. 
 

        CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
 
      BY:_________________________________________ 
 
      Its:______________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2884 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 13th day 
of November 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 13 of 14 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:   ____________________________________ 
       Its City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
COUNTY OF _________________ 
 
 I, ________________________________, a Notary Public, in and for said County in said State, 
hereby certify that  ______________________and _________________________whose names 
as Mayor, City Manager and City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation, are signed to the foregoing instrument and who are known to me, acknowledged 
before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, they, as such officers 
and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said municipal 
corporation. 
 
           Given under my hand and seal this _____day of ____________________, 2019.  
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Notary Public,  
      ______________________ County, Alabama 
      My Commission Expires:_____________________ 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance Number 2884



1/2689324.2 Page 14 of 14 

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 

    BY:__________________________________________ 

Its:_______________________ 

STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

 I, ________________________________, a Notary Public, in and for said County in said State, 
hereby certify that _______________________ whose name as ____________________ of 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, is signed to the 
foregoing instrument and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the instrument, he/she, as such officers and with full authority, executed 
the same voluntarily for and as the act of said limited liability company.  

Given under my hand and seal this ______day of _________________, 2019. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Public,  
Broomfield County, Colorado 
My Commission Expires:_____________________ 

Ordinance Number 2884



Exhibit A - Ord 2884



Exhibit A - Ord 2884



0 2 41

Miles

Level3 Route
LEASED  FIBER ~40,896'

LEVEL3   FIBER ~49,715'

CenturyLink Route
Vestavia Hills, AL ¯

Disclose and distribute only to CenturyLink
and City of Vestavia Hills, AL employees and

authorized persons working on behalf of
CenturyLink and the City of Vestavia Hills,
AL having a legitimate business need to

know. Disclosure and distribution is
prohibited without authorization.

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

S
IT

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
1

17

C
LL

I: 
V

S
H

LA
LC

I
N

E
T

B
U

IL
D

 #
 N

48
91

74
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 #

 N
.5

36
39

0

S
T

A
R

T
P

R
O

JE
C

T

E
N

D
P

R
O

JE
C

T

S
H

E
E

T
 4

S
H

E
E

T
 5

S
H

E
E

T
 6

SHEET 7

SHEET 8
SHEET 9

S
H

E
E

T
 1

0

S
H

E
E

T
 1

2

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 IN

F
O

:

C
h

ri
st

o
p

h
er

 V
au

g
h

an
Se

ni
or

 IT
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

H
ea

lth
S

ou
th

O
fc

: 2
05

97
0-

34
06

C
el

l: 
20

5-
22

9-
33

81
E

m
ai

l: 
ch

ris
to

ph
er

.v
au

gh
an

@
he

al
th

so
ut

h.
co

m

L
E

V
E

L
3 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

:

Jo
h

n
 L

o
ck

w
o

o
d

O
U

TS
ID

E 
PL

A
N

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Le
ve

l3
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
20

01
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
L 

35
20

3
O

ffi
ce

: 2
05

-2
63

-9
16

3
E

m
ai

l: 
 jo

hn
.lo

ck
w

oo
d@

le
ve

l3
.c

om

S
h

ay
n

e 
A

ct
o

n
SR

. O
U

TS
ID

E 
PL

A
N

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.
93

0 
M

ar
ke

et
a 

S
pu

r 
R

oa
d

M
oo

dy
, A

L 
35

00
4

C
el

l: 
20

5-
96

0-
21

37
E

m
ai

l: 
 s

ha
yn

e.
ac

to
n@

lu
ffm

an
by

er
s.

co
m

 S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K
:

P
ro

po
se

d 
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f 
51

18
' o

f n
ew

 a
er

ia
l 9

6c
t

fib
er

 o
pt

ic
 c

ab
le

, 
16

60
' o

f n
ew

 b
ur

ie
d 

96
ct

 fi
be

r
op

tic
 c

ab
le

, a
nd

 4
5'

 o
f n

ew
 IS

P
 9

6c
t f

ib
er

 o
pt

ic
ca

bl
e 

fr
om

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

sp
lic

e 
ca

se
 to

 L
ev

el
3

cu
st

om
er

, E
nc

om
pa

ss
 H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
T

el
ec

om
 D

em
ar

c 
R

oo
m

 1
13

 a
t 9

00
1 

Li
be

rt
y

P
ar

kw
ay

, V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L.
  S

pl
ic

in
g 

w
ill

 c
on

si
st

 o
f

ad
di

ng
 c

ab
le

s 
to

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

en
cl

os
ur

e,
 s

pl
ic

in
g

fo
ur

 fi
be

rs
 a

nd
 s

pl
ic

in
g 

12
 fi

be
rs

 in
 th

e 
F

D
P

.

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is
 to

 n
ot

ify
 L

ev
el

(3
) 

O
S

P
E

ng
in

ee
r,

 J
oh

n 
Lo

ck
w

oo
d 

at
20

5-
26

3-
91

63
 a

nd
 c

us
to

m
er

 c
on

ta
ct

C
hr

is
to

ph
er

 V
au

gh
an

 a
t 2

05
-9

70
-3

40
6

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 4
8 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r 

to
be

gi
nn

in
g 

an
y 

w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

si
te

.

S
IT

E
 IN

D
E

X

1.
C

O
V

E
R

 S
H

E
E

T
2.

LE
G

E
N

D
3.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

4.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

5.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

6.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

7.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

8.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

9.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

10
.

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
H

E
E

T
11

.
A

LD
O

T
 C

O
V

E
R

 S
H

E
E

T
12

.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

13
.

B
O

R
E

 P
R

O
F

IL
E

 S
H

E
E

T
14

.
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 S

H
E

E
T

15
.

IS
P

 D
E

T
A

IL
 S

H
E

E
T

16
.

T
Y

P
IC

A
LS

17
.

R
A

T
E

 C
A

R
D

 T
A

B
LE

S

D
IV

E
R

S
E

 R
O

U
T

E
90

01
 L

IB
E

R
T

Y
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

E
N

C
O

M
P

A
S

S

SHEET 14

N
O

T
E

 T
O

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

:
T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

es
e 

dr
aw

in
gs

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

ty
pe

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 u

til
iti

es
 is

 n
ot

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 o
r 

al
l i

nc
lu

si
ve

.  
T

he
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
hi

s 
ow

n
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

as
 to

 ty
pe

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 u

til
iti

es
 a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 a

vo
id

 d
am

ag
e

th
er

et
o,

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
ta

ke
 a

ll 
du

e 
pr

ec
au

tio
na

ry
 m

ea
su

re
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
ll 

kn
ow

n 
ut

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

.  
T

he
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ve

rif
y 

lo
ca

tio
n 

(h
or

iz
on

ta
lly

 a
nd

 v
er

tic
al

ly
) 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

nd
 u

til
iti

es
 b

y
pr

os
pe

ct
in

g 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
f e

xc
av

at
io

n 
op

er
at

io
ns

.

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R

E
R

N
A

M
E

V
A

U
LT

-

V
A

U
LT

LE
V

E
L 

3

IDLE
V

E
L 

3

1 1 111 1

#F #F #F

H
H

-

H
A

N
D

H
O

LE
LE

V
E

L 
3

M
H

-

M
A

N
H

O
LE

LE
V

E
L 

3

P
B

-

P
U

LL
B

O
X

LE
V

E
L 

3

LE
G

E
N

D

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
2

17Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

   
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

N
O

T
E

S

1.
C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

us
t o

bt
ai

n 
lo

ca
te

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

.

2.
C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

us
t h

av
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
pe

rm
it 

fr
om

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

ge
nc

y 
on

 th
e 

jo
bs

ite
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

.

3.
A

ll 
ca

bl
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 a

t s
ta

nd
ar

d 
m

in
im

um
 d

ep
th

. (
Le

ve
l3

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
is

 3
6”

 d
ee

p 
un

le
ss

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 b
y 

a
Le

ve
l 3

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e.

)

4.
A

ny
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 to

 e
qu

al
 o

r 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 th
at

 w
hi

ch
 e

xi
st

ed
 p

rio
r 

to
 w

or
k.

5.
P

ro
je

ct
 s

ite
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 s

ec
ur

ed
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 e
ac

h 
da

y.

6.
A

ll 
w

or
k 

is
 to

 b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ll 
au

th
or

iti
es

 h
av

in
g 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

zo
ne

.

7.
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 a

re
 a

dv
is

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 L
ev

el
 3

 fo
r 

an
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
or

 c
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 s
co

pe
 o

f w
or

k 
or

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

t c
om

pl
et

io
n.

8.
C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 to
 fi

el
d 

ve
rif

y 
al

l d
im

en
si

on
s,

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 If
 a

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 th
e 

ru
nn

in
g 

lin
e 

is
 n

ee
de

d,
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t y
ou

r 
Le

ve
l 3

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

be
fo

re
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g.

9.
B

ef
or

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
be

gi
ns

, c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l t
ak

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
re

ca
ut

io
ns

 to
 a

vo
id

 a
ny

 p
ot

en
tia

l o
bs

tr
uc

tio
ns

 p
rio

r 
to

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 w

ith
 w

or
k.

10
.

N
o 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

on
 p

riv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 u
nt

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
 is

 g
iv

en
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 L
ev

el
 3

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
.

11
.

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 w
or

k 
un

til
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 d

o 
so

by
 a

n 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 L
ev

el
 3

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e.

12
.

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 v
al

ue
 w

ith
ou

t a
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 L

ev
el

 3
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e.

13
.

A
s-

B
ui

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ca
bl

e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
se

qu
en

tia
ls

 a
t e

ve
ry

 a
cc

es
s 

po
in

t, 
sl

ac
k 

lo
op

, s
pl

ic
e

lo
ca

tio
n,

 p
ol

e 
an

d 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
po

in
t. 

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

no
te

s 
of

 a
ll 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 d

ep
th

s,
 r

un
ni

ng
 li

ne
s,

m
h/

hh
 lo

ca
tio

ns
, a

nd
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 n

ot
es

 to
 d

ep
ic

t t
he

 w
or

k 
th

at
 to

ok
 p

la
ce

.

 N
O

T
E

:

A
ll 

m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

e-
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 L

ev
el

 3
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

rio
r 

to
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

th
e 

w
or

k.

   
   

  S
IT

E
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

T
he

 a
ct

ua
l l

oc
at

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nd

ui
t a

nd
 c

ab
le

s 
m

ay
 v

ar
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

sh
ow

n.
 R

ep
ai

r 
of

 a
ny

 d
am

ag
ed

co
nd

ui
t c

on
ta

in
in

g 
ca

bl
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
by

 u
se

 o
f P

V
C

 s
pl

it 
du

ct
. T

he
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l e

nc
lo

se
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ca

bl
es

 in
P

V
C

.
T

he
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
ut

ili
tie

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e.

 W
he

n 
w

or
k 

is
 to

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f k

no
w

n
ut

ili
tie

s,
 th

ei
r 

ac
tu

al
 lo

ca
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
fie

ld
 v

er
ifi

ed
 to

 a
vo

id
 c

on
fli

ct
s 

or
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 th
os

e 
ut

ili
tie

s.
 V

ar
ia

tio
n 

in
 lo

ca
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
"r

ec
or

de
d 

po
si

tio
ns

" 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 p
os

iti
on

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
.

It 
sh

al
l b

e 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

's
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 to
 v

er
ify

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
ut

ili
tie

s.
 B

ur
ie

d 
ut

ili
tie

s 
m

ay
 e

xi
st

 in
 

th
e

ar
ea

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
os

e 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

e 
pl

an
. T

he
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l c

on
ta

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

rs
 w

he
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

in
 

pr
iv

at
e 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 ta
nk

s,
 p

ip
el

in
es

, d
ra

in
 ti

le
s,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
bu

rie
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. T
he

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
al

so
 n

ot
ify

 th
e 

ut
ili

ty
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ce

nt
er

 p
rio

r 
to

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 a
ny

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
us

t a
ss

um
e 

al
l b

ur
ie

d 
ut

ili
tie

s 
en

co
un

te
re

d 
ar

e 
al

iv
e 

an
d 

ac
tiv

e 
un

le
ss

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
by

 th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

r 
op

er
at

or
s 

of
 s

ai
d 

ut
ili

tie
s.

D
am

ag
e 

to
 s

ub
-s

ur
fa

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
is

 th
e 

so
le

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
la

ci
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r.

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

tr
af

fic
 c

on
tr

ol
 lo

op
s.

 If
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 c

on
tr

ol
 lo

op
s 

ar
e 

da
m

ag
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
lo

op
w

ire
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

al
 to

 te
rm

in
al

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

t c
on

tr
ac

to
r's

 e
xp

en
se

.

R
em

ov
al

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

as
ph

al
t p

av
em

en
t, 

co
nc

re
te

 c
ur

bs
, a

nd
 c

on
cr

et
e 

si
de

w
al

ks
 w

ill
 b

e 
"n

ea
t l

in
e"

 w
ith

 s
aw

 o
r 

pa
ve

m
en

t c
ut

te
r,

 p
er

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

ge
nc

y 
or

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 If

 
co

nc
re

te
 p

av
em

en
t i

s 
en

co
un

te
re

d 
w

hi
le

 e
xc

av
at

in
g 

co
nd

ui
t t

re
nc

he
s,

 th
e 

co
nc

re
te

 r
em

ov
al

 w
ill

 b
e 

"n
ea

t l
in

e"
 w

ith
 a

 
pa

ve
m

en
t s

aw
.

If 
co

nc
re

te
 c

ur
b 

re
tu

rn
s 

an
d/

or
 s

id
ew

al
ks

 a
re

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
du

e 
to

 c
on

du
it 

or
 m

an
ho

le
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pl

ac
e

ap
pr

ov
ed

 h
an

di
ca

pp
ed

 s
id

ew
al

k 
an

d 
cu

rb
 a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

 in
 c

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ta
te

 s
ta

tu
te

s.

A
ll 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r 

re
pa

ir 
or

 s
tr

ee
ts

, c
ur

bs
, s

id
ew

al
ks

, s
an

ita
ry

 s
ew

er
s,

 s
to

rm
 s

ew
er

s,
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ut

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
ha

ll 
be

 in
 c

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 

ag
en

cy
 o

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 th
e 

re
pa

ire
d 

fa
ci

lit
y.

A
ll 

w
or

k 
sh

al
l c

on
fo

rm
 to

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l p

er
m

it 
ag

en
cy

.

A
ll 

op
en

 tr
en

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
cl

ea
rly

 m
ar

ke
d 

w
ith

 b
ar

ric
ad

ed
 o

r 
co

ne
s.

 S
te

el
 p

la
te

s 
or

 o
th

er
 ty

pe
s 

of
 b

rid
gi

ng
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
co

ve
r 

op
en

 tr
en

ch
 in

 th
e 

tr
av

el
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
re

et
s.

 T
he

se
 p

la
te

s 
or

 b
rid

gi
ng

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
de

qu
at

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

no
rm

al
ve

hi
cl

e 
lo

ad
s 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 d

ur
in

g 
al

l n
on

-w
or

ki
ng

 a
re

as
.

A
ll 

su
rf

ac
es

 to
 b

e 
re

st
or

ed
 to

 o
rig

in
al

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 a

nd
 b

ac
kf

ill
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pa
ct

ed
 a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
. T

re
nc

h 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

in
 s

ur
fa

ce
s

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

nc
re

te
 tr

ea
te

d 
ba

se
 s

ha
ll 

fo
llo

w
 lo

ca
l a

re
a 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

.

   
 H

A
Z

A
R

D
O

U
S

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

ify
 th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l p

er
m

it 
ag

en
cy

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 if
 a

ny
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
re

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
ed

 th
at

 a
re

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 h
az

ar
do

us
 b

y 
th

e 
E

P
A

, D
E

Q
, o

r 
O

S
H

A
. I

f p
ot

en
tia

lly
 h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

sh
al

l s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
e 

ac
ci

de
nt

al
 e

xp
os

ur
e 

by
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
r 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
's

 p
er

so
nn

el
.

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
ay

 e
xc

av
at

e 
up

 to
, b

ut
 s

ha
ll 

no
t d

is
tu

rb
 k

no
w

n 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

uc
h 

as
 a

sb
es

to
s,

 o
ils

, a
ci

d,
 e

tc
.

T
he

 r
em

ov
al

 o
f a

ll 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 m

us
t b

e 
do

ne
 b

y 
an

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
or

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
lic

en
se

d 
by

 th
e 

S
ta

te
 o

f A
la

ba
m

a.

A
 c

op
y 

of
 a

ll 
co

rr
es

po
nd

en
ce

 p
er

tin
en

t t
o 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

ha
ll 

be
 tr

an
sm

itt
ed

 to
 o

w
ne

r 
an

d 
a 

co
py

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t o

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 th
e 

jo
b 

si
te

.

A
E

R
IA

L 
N

O
T

E
S

A
er

ia
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 to
 in

du
st

ry
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s.

A
ll 

he
ig

ht
s 

of
 c

ab
le

 p
la

ce
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 D

oc
um

en
t a

ll 
po

in
ts

 o
f a

tta
ch

m
en

t.

6.
6M

 s
tr

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 w
ith

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
5 8
" 

ha
rd

w
ar

e.
A

ll 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

ar
m

s 
to

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 w

ill
 b

e 
ep

ox
y 

ar
m

s 
un

le
ss

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

no
te

d 
or

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
to

r.
B

on
d 

st
ra

nd
 to

 p
ow

er
 M

G
N

 w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

. A
nc

ho
rs

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 w

ill
 b

e 
3/

4 
" 

sc
re

w
 in

 ty
pe

.
A

ll 
st

ra
ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 4

" 
be

fo
re

 a
nd

 a
fte

r 
ev

er
y 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
cl

am
p 

at
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 2

1"
 a

pa
rt

.
P

.O
.A

. =
 P

oi
nt

 O
f A

tta
ch

m
en

t
A

dd
 m

is
si

ng
 g

ro
un

ds
R

ep
ai

r 
/ R

ep
la

ce
 e

xi
st

in
g 

la
sh

in
g 

w
ire

 if
 d

am
ag

ed

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

T
A

K
IN

G

In
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 th

e 
co

nd
ui

t a
lig

nm
en

t i
s 

no
t c

le
ar

ly
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
cu

rb
 li

ne
s,

 fe
nc

e 
lin

es
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f t

he
 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

, t
he

 e
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

en
te

rli
ne

 s
ta

ke
s 

or
 p

ai
nt

 m
ar

ks
 w

he
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
du

it
al

ig
nm

en
t e

vi
de

nt
.

C
lo

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

by
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

. D
ev

ia
tio

n 
fr

om
 p

la
n 

la
yo

ut
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e
en

gi
ne

er
 p

rio
r 

to
 c

on
du

it 
an

d/
or

 c
lo

su
re

 in
st

al
la

tio
n.

M
an

ho
le

 c
en

te
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

fie
ld

 s
ta

ke
d 

by
 th

e 
en

gi
ne

er
 w

he
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
w

ith
 o

ffs
et

 s
ta

ke
s 

at
 r

ig
ht

 a
ng

le
s 

to
 th

e 
co

nd
ui

t 
al

ig
nm

en
t.

If 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

ie
ld

 s
ta

ki
ng

 o
r 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

on
du

its
, m

an
ho

le
s,

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
lin

es
, e

tc
, b

ec
om

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is
 

to
 n

ot
ify

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
to

r 
or

 th
e 

en
gi

ne
er

 tw
o 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 th
e 

w
or

k.

P
E

R
M

IT
S

 -
 F

R
A

N
C

H
IS

E
S

 -
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

P
hy

si
ca

l w
or

k 
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
st

ar
te

d 
un

til
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

ag
en

cy
 in

sp
ec

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

re
 in

 p
os

se
ss

io
n 

of
 a

nd
 

ha
ve

 c
ar

ef
ul

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 fu
lly

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

al
l c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 s

et
 fo

rt
h 

in
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rm
its

, 
fr

an
ch

is
es

, a
nd

/o
r 

ea
se

m
en

ts
.

P
la

ci
ng

 fo
re

m
an

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 p
er

m
its

/e
as

em
en

ts
 o

n 
si

te
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

.

A
ny

 c
on

fli
ct

 b
et

w
ee

n 
w

or
k 

pr
in

t s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
un

de
r 

re
la

te
d 

pe
rm

its
, f

ra
nc

hi
se

s,
 a

nd
/o

r 
ea

se
m

en
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

cl
ea

re
d 

by
 p

ro
pe

r 
co

m
pa

ny
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

be
fo

re
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 w

ith
 w

or
k 

in
vo

lv
ed

.

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L

T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
lo

ng
 a

 m
aj

or
 a

rt
er

ia
l r

oa
d 

an
d 

he
av

y 
tr

af
fic

 v
ol

um
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

.

U
ni

fo
rm

 tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
 s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

. O
nl

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
or

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

ar
ea

. A
ll 

ot
he

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

"s
to

re
d 

or
 

st
oc

kp
ile

d"
 in

 s
uc

h 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

as
 to

 e
lim

in
at

e 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
tr

af
fic

 o
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
no

n-
w

or
ki

ng
 o

r 
sh

ut
 d

ow
n 

pe
rio

ds
.

T
ra

ffi
c 

w
ar

ni
ng

 d
ev

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
ig

ns
 s

ha
ll 

co
nf

or
m

 to
 th

e 
m

an
ua

l o
n 

un
ifo

rm
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

tr
ol

 d
ev

ic
es

 fo
r 

st
re

et
s 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
(U

S
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
rin

tin
g 

O
ffi

ce
) 

an
d 

to
 th

e 
A

la
ba

m
a 

S
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 d

iv
is

io
n 

st
an

da
rd

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
hi

gh
w

ay
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 H
ig

h 
le

ve
l w

ar
ni

ng
 ty

pe
 d

ev
ic

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

al
 w

ar
ni

ng
 d

ev
ic

es
 m

ay
 b

e
st

ip
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l p
er

m
it 

ag
en

cy
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
he

 u
se

 w
ill

 a
dd

 to
 th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

af
fic

 o
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ar
ea

.

A
ll 

co
nd

ui
t t

re
nc

hi
ng

 in
 p

av
ed

 a
re

as
 s

ha
ll 

be
 b

ac
kf

ill
ed

 w
ith

 c
ru

sh
ed

 g
ra

ve
l o

r 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
co

ve
re

d 
at

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 e

ac
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

. A
ny

 b
ac

kf
ill

ed
 tr

en
ch

 s
ha

ll 
be

 c
ap

pe
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 la

ye
r 

of
 a

sp
ha

lti
c 

co
nc

re
te

 c
ol

d 
pa

tc
h 

at
 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 e

ac
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

.

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l m
ar

k 
th

e 
co

nd
ui

t t
re

nc
h 

an
d 

de
fin

e 
hi

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ar

ea
 c

le
ar

ly
 w

ith
 b

ar
ric

ad
es

, c
on

es
, a

nd
/o

r 
ot

he
r 

vi
si

bl
e 

m
et

ho
ds

 th
at

 a
le

rt
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
f t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
.

A
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

tr
ol

 p
la

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

an
d 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 e

ac
h 

pe
rm

itt
in

g 
ag

en
cy

 
re

qu
es

tin
g 

su
ch

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
r 

re
vi

si
on

 p
rio

r 
to

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 a
ny

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 fo
r 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

.
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pl
an

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 s
ha

ll 
be

 k
ep

t a
t t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 a
nd

 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
ag

en
cy

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

.

   
 S

P
E

C
IA

L 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
LE

A
R

A
N

C
E

S

A
ll 

w
or

k 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 w

at
er

 m
ai

ns
 s

ha
ll 

co
nf

or
m

 to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s:

A
.  

 W
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
 c

on
du

it 
sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
ho

riz
on

ta
l s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 3
', 

m
ea

su
re

d 
su

rf
ac

e 
to

 s
ur

fa
ce

 (
ou

ts
id

e 
ed

ge
 to

   
   

 o
ut

si
de

 e
dg

e)
 fr

om
 p

ar
al

le
l w

at
er

 m
ai

ns
.

B
.  

 W
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
 c

on
du

it 
sh

al
l p

as
s 

un
de

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
w

at
er

 m
ai

ns
 a

nd
 m

us
t m

ai
nt

ai
n 

12
" 

ve
rt

ic
al

 c
le

ar
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n.
   

   
C

on
du

its
 p

as
si

ng
 o

ve
r 

w
at

er
 m

ai
ns

 m
us

t a
ls

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

12
" 

ve
rt

ic
al

 s
ep

ar
at

io
n.

C
.  

 T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ve

rt
ic

al
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
by

 e
ith

er
 

   
   

 e
xp

os
in

g 
th

e 
w

at
er

 m
ai

n 
ev

er
y 

10
0 

fe
et

 in
 th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 h
or

iz
on

ta
l s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
is

 le
ss

 th
an

 3
 fe

et
 o

r 
by

 u
til

iz
in

g
   

   
 th

e 
de

pt
hs

 o
f a

dj
ac

en
t w

at
er

 v
al

ve
s.

 If
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 u
til

iz
es

 th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 w
at

er
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
at

er
 m

ai
n 

de
pt

h,
 h

e
   

   
 s

ha
ll 

co
nt

ac
t t

he
 a

ge
nc

y 
at

 e
ac

h 
su

ch
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
de

pt
h 

of
 th

e 
to

p 
of

 th
e

   
   

 c
on

du
it 

at
 th

at
 p

oi
nt

.

D
.  

 T
he

 v
er

tic
al

 a
nd

 h
or

iz
on

ta
l s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

 u
nl

es
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 r

ev
is

ed
 b

y 
ag

re
em

en
t 

   
   

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l p

er
m

it 
ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
. A

ny
 s

pe
ci

fic
 d

ev
ia

tio
n 

in
 v

er
tic

al
 a

nd
 h

or
iz

on
ta

l s
ep

ar
at

io
n

   
   

 fr
om

 th
os

e 
de

sc
rib

ed
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 th

e 
ow

ne
r 

by
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

. T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

   
   

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 v
er

tic
al

 a
nd

 h
or

iz
on

ta
l s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

an
y 

an
d 

al
l e

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
ts

.

E
.  

 C
le

ar
an

ce
s 

to
 s

to
rm

 s
ew

er
s 

an
d 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 s
ew

er
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

ex
ac

tly
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

to
 w

at
er

 m
ai

ns
.

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IO
N

M
an

ho
le

s 
an

d 
co

nd
ui

t t
o 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 b
rid

ge
, b

rid
ge

 fo
ot

in
g/

pi
er

s,
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, 
fo

un
da

tio
ns

, 
w

al
ls

, 
po

w
er

 a
nd

 t
el

ep
ho

ne
 p

ol
es

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ut
ili

tie
s 

sh
al

l 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
m

in
im

um
 c

le
ar

an
ce

 a
s 

sh
ow

n.
 T

he
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
un

de
rm

in
e 

an
y 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ith
ou

t 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
w

rit
te

n 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 o

w
ne

r/
op

er
at

or
 o

f 
su

ch
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

S
ho

rin
g 

us
ed

 a
s 

fo
un

da
tio

n 
su

pp
or

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 f

or
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

liv
e 

an
d 

de
ad

 l
oa

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

or
 i

f
on

ly
 th

e 
de

ad
 lo

ad
 is

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
de

si
gn

. T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

la
yo

ut
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

of
 th

e 
m

et
ho

d 
of

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 lo
ad

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 (

i.e
. r

oa
d 

de
to

ur
s,

 ti
eb

ac
ks

, e
tc

).

S
ee

 u
til

ity
 c

le
ar

an
ce

 s
ec

tio
n 

no
te

s 
fo

r 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

cr
ite

ria
 to

 p
ar

al
le

l o
r 

cr
os

s 
ut

ili
tie

s.

E
xi

st
in

g 
ut

ili
tie

s 
ex

po
se

d 
du

rin
g 

ex
ca

va
tio

n 
sh

al
l 

be
 1

00
%

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
ei

th
er

 t
re

nc
h 

br
id

gi
ng

 a
nd

 s
us

pe
ns

io
n 

or
 b

y 
th

e
us

e 
of

 lo
ng

itu
di

na
l t

ra
ys

 o
r 

pl
at

fo
rm

s 
ve

rt
ic

al
ly

 s
up

po
rt

s 
by

 a
dj

us
ta

bl
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

ja
ck

s.

E
xi

st
in

g 
sp

lic
e 

ca
se

s 
an

d 
ca

bl
es

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
su

sp
en

si
on

 f
ro

m
 a

 c
ro

ss
in

g
 b

ea
m

. 
S

up
po

rt
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 a

t 
a

m
ax

im
um

 s
pa

ci
ng

 o
f 4

 fe
et

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
co

ns
is

t o
f a

 c
an

va
s 

sl
in

g 
w

ith
 n

yl
on

 b
el

tin
g 

or
 r

op
e.

 A
ll 

ca
bl

e 
su

pp
or

ts
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 a
 m

an
ne

r 
th

at
 p

re
ve

nt
s 

ki
nk

s 
or

 o
th

er
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

ca
bl

e 
sh

ea
th

.

A
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 c
ab

le
 s

lin
gs

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
ut

ili
za

tio
n 

of
 a

 w
id

e 
fla

ng
e 

"I
" 

be
am

 o
r 

ch
an

ne
l 

as
 a

 "
ca

bl
e

 t
ra

y"
w

ith
 c

ab
le

s/
ca

se
s 

ba
nd

ed
 in

 p
la

ce
.

 S
H

O
R

IN
G

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 s
ho

rin
g 

fo
r 

co
nd

ui
t t

re
nc

h 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

42
" 

or
 m

or
e

 in
 d

ep
th

 a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
hi

gh
 s

id
e 

of
th

e 
tr

en
ch

 a
nd

 fo
r 

al
l m

an
ho

le
 e

xc
av

at
io

n.

M
an

ho
le

 s
ho

rin
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

tig
ht

-s
he

et
ed

.

A
ll 

sh
or

in
g 

sh
al

l c
on

fo
rm

 to
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f l

oc
al

 c
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

th
e 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l s

af
et

y 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n.

S
ho

rin
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 m

ee
t H

-2
0 

hi
gh

w
ay

 lo
ad

in
g.

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
al

l 
sh

or
in

g 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

pe
rm

it 
is

su
in

g 
ag

en
cy

 p
rio

r 
to

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 a
ny

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ac
tiv

ity
.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
3

17Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

288'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
4

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

M
A

T
C

H
 T

O
 S

H
E

E
T

5
1 2 3 4 65

6

1

2
3

4

5

96
CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

15
7'

24
1'

75
'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
5

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET6

M
A

T
C

H
 T

O
 S

H
E

E
T

4

1 2 3 4

4

1
2

3

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

18
1'

23
7'

69
'

79'

15
1'

17
'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
6

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET7

MATCH TO SHEET5

1 2 43 5

5

1
2

4

3
96

CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

145'

141'

12
6'

15
8'

16
8'

18
'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
7

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET8

M
A

T
C

H
 T

O
 S

H
E

E
T

6

1 2 3

3

2

3

1

96
CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

25
0'

12
4'

27
0'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
8

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET9

MATCH TO SHEET7

1 2 3

3

1
2

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

25'

STA. 0+00 POWER POLE

STA. 0+09 BOC

STA. 0+56 WATER METER

STA. 0+69 BOC

STA. 0+87 EDGE OF DRIVEWAY

STA. 1+29 WATER VALVE

16
3'

21
8'

12
3'

42'

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
9

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET10 - STA. 1+60

MATCH TO SHEET8

1 2 3

1

2
1

3

54

5
4

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

96
CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

S
T

A
. 2

+
10

 P
O

W
E

R
 P

O
LE

S
T

A
. 2

+
63

 W
A

T
E

R
 M

E
T

E
R

S
T

A
. 3

+
47

 D
R

A
IN

 S
T

A
R

T

S
T

A
. 3

+
65

 D
R

A
IN

 E
N

D

S
T

A
. 3

+
89

 W
A

T
E

R
 M

E
T

E
R

S
T

A
. 2

+
88

 E
D

G
E

 O
F

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

S
T

A
. 2

+
91

 E
D

G
E

 O
F

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

S
T

A
. 3

+
91

 P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 H
H

STA. 4
+1

8 
DRAIN

 S
TART

STA. 4
+3

2 
DRAIN

 E
NDS

STA. 5
+10 DRIVEWAY EDGE

STA. 5+35 DRIVEWAY EDGE

STA. 5+60 TREE

STA. 6+04 BRUSH STARTS

STA. 7+35 BRUSH ENDS

STA. 6+89 POWER POLE

STA. 7+58 SIGN

STA. 7+61 ATT PED

STA. 8+32 DRIVEWAY EDGE

STA. 8+62 DRIVEWAY EDGE

STA. 9+91 WATER VALVE

STA. 9+48 POWER POLE

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
10

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET12 - STA. 10+15

M
A

T
C

H
 T

O
 S

H
E

E
T

9 
- 

S
T

A
. 1

+
60

21 3 4 65
1

2

3

4

5
6

96
CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
11

17

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 IN

F
O

:
L

u
ff

m
an

-B
ye

rs
 T

el
ec

o
m

:

S
h

ay
n

e 
A

ct
o

n
S

r.
 O

ut
si

de
 P

la
nt

 E
ng

in
ee

r
93

0 
M

ar
ke

et
a 

S
pu

r 
R

oa
d

M
oo

dy
, A

L 
35

00
4

M
ob

ile
: 2

05
-9

60
-2

13
7

E
-M

ai
l: 

sh
ay

ne
.a

ct
on

@
lu

ffm
an

by
er

s.
co

m

L
ev

el
3 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s:

Jo
h

n
 L

o
ck

w
o

o
d

O
U

TS
ID

E 
PL

A
N

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

Le
ve

l3
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
20

01
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
L 

35
20

3
O

ffi
ce

: 2
05

-2
63

-9
16

3
E

m
ai

l: 
 jo

hn
.lo

ck
w

oo
d@

le
ve

l3
.c

om

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

H
A

N
D

H
O

LE
LE

V
E

L3

H
A

N
D

H
O

LE
LE

V
E

L3

S
T

A
. 1

0+
67

 P
O

W
E

R
 P

O
LE

STA. 12+54 TOP OF SLOPE

STA. 13+73 - C/L OF DITCH

STA. 15+65- TOE OF SLOPE

STA. 15+85 - TOE OF SLOPE

STA. 16+62 - TOP OF SLOPE

S
T

A
. 1

6+
87

 -
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 H

H

STA. 16+67 - EX. R/W

STA. 14+07 - LANE

STA. 15+19 - LANE

STA. 14+19 - LANE

STA. 14+31- LANE

STA. 14+43 - LANE

STA. 14+83 - LANE

STA. 14+95 - LANE

STA. 15+07 - LANE

STA. 14+63 - WALL

S
T

A
. 1

6+
97

 -
 E

X
. G

A
S

 L
IN

E

S
T

A
. 1

7+
05

 -
 E

X
. G

A
S

 L
IN

E

STA. 1
1+92 P

ROPOSED H
H

STA. 13+95 - EOP

STA. 15+31 - EOP

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

MATCH TO SHEET10 - STA. 10+15

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, A
L

JE
F

F
E

R
S

O
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

A
L

D
O

T
 P

E
R

M
IT

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 F

O
R

 P
L

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
B

U
R

IE
D

 F
IB

E
R

 A
L

O
N

G
 I-

45
9

8
7

B
O

R
E

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 @

 M
P

 2
2.

79
2

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
12

17

21 3 4 65 87

M
A

T
C

H
 T

O
 S

H
E

E
T

14
 -

 S
T

A
. 1

8+
67

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

2
1

3
6

5

4

3

4
96

CT
96

CT

4

9

9

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

℄

℄

℄

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
13

17Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

PR
O

PO
SE

D
LE

VE
L3

 H
H

STA. 20+15 - EX. STORM LINE

STA. 20+66 - EX. STORM LINE

STA. 21+53 - EX. CHARTER & CUSTOMER HH

STA. 21+47 - PROP. LEVEL3 HH

S
T

A
. 2

3+
87

 -
 B

LD
G

. E
N

T
R

Y
 P

O
IN

T

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
14

17

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

S
E

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

 1
IS

P
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
H

E
E

T
 1

5

96
CT

96
CT

21 3 4 5 876 9

MATCH TO SHEET12 - STA. 18+67

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

2
3

7

5

6
4

8
9

1

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

D
E

T
A

IL
 1

1s
t F

LO
O

R
 T

E
LE

C
O

M
 D

E
M

A
R

C
R

O
O

M
 1

13

D
E

T
A

IL
S

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
15

17

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
  N

O
T

E
S

1

4

3

6

6

2 541 3

5

N
O

T
E

:
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 2

 D
E

D
IC

A
T

E
D

 1
20

V
/2

0A
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
C

IR
C

U
IT

S
 W

IT
H

 L
5-

20
R

 O
U

T
LE

T
S

A
N

D
 G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 W

IT
H

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 B
A

R
F

O
R

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 L

E
V

E
L3

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 IN
T

E
LE

C
O

M
 D

E
M

A
R

C
 R

O
O

M
.

2

P
ag

e 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

7

7

96
CT

Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

T
Y

P
IC

A
LS

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
16

17Exhibit A - Ord 2884



D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

LE
V

E
L 

3 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

:

N
.5

36
39

0-
90

01
 L

ib
er

ty
 P

ar
k-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

dw
g

N
O

.

123

JO
H

N
 L

O
C

K
W

O
O

D

Lu
ffm

an
 B

ye
rs

 T
el

ec
om

, I
nc

.

N
.5

36
39

0

90
01

 L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

kw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a,
 A

L 
35

24
2

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
be

lo
w.

be
fo

re
 yo

u d
ig.

Ca
ll

R

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L/

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

S
H

E
E

T
: 

O
F

 
17

17

T
ot

al
 U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

T
ot

al
 A

er
ia

l R
at

e 
C

ar
d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

T
ot

al
 In

si
de

 P
la

nt
 (

IS
P

) 
R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

O
S

P
 9

6 
C

T
. F

IB
E

R
 O

P
T

IC
 C

A
B

LE
 (

P
H

A
S

E
 2

)
A

E
R

IA
L

'
O

S
P

 9
6 

C
T

. F
IB

E
R

 O
P

T
IC

 C
A

B
LE

 (
P

H
A

S
E

 2
)

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
'

IS
P

   
96

 C
T

. F
IB

E
R

 O
P

T
IC

 C
A

B
LE

 (
P

H
A

S
E

 2
)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

   
'

T
O

T
A

L
'

F
IB

E
R

 C
A

B
LE

 T
O

T
A

LS
39

20
27

87 45
67

07

T
ot

al
 M

at
er

ia
l R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

T
ot

al
 M

at
er

ia
l R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

T
ot

al
 M

at
er

ia
l R

at
e 

C
ar

d

U
ni

t C
od

e 
&

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

ts
E

st
im

at
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
ct

ua
l

Q
ua

nt
ity

Exhibit A - Ord 2884


	2019_1028CC_A
	Proclamation World Polio Day 2019
	Proclamation Hospice  Palliative Care 2019
	Proclamation Small Business November 2019
	10 14 2019 Minutes
	Ordinance 2875
	Resolution 5191
	Resolution 5195
	Resolution 5199
	Resolution 5194
	Resolution 5200
	Ordinance 2880
	Resolution 5196
	Ordinance 2881
	Resolution 5197
	Ordinance 2882
	Resolution 5198
	Ordinance 2883
	Ordinance 2884



